
financial report_2012

7580_USCFR12.coverform.final_Layout 1  11/19/12  10:13 AM  Page 1



03 _ TRANSFORMING USC

07 _ UNIVERSITY HIGHLIGHTS

12   _ ACADEMIC HIGHLIGHTS

20_ FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

24_ NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

38  _ BUDGET 2012-2013

49  _ USC ROLE AND MISSION

UNIVERSITY LEADERSHIP, inside back cover

Board of Trustees

Voting Members
Wallis Annenberg
Wanda M. Austin
Lisa Barkett
Thomas J. Barrack Jr.
Marc Benioff
Joseph M. Boskovich Sr.
Gregory P. Brakovich
Rick J. Caruso
Alan I. Casden
Ronnie C. Chan
Yang Ho Cho
Christopher Cox
Frank H. Cruz
Richard DeBeikes Jr.
David H. Dornsife
Michele Dedeaux Engemann
Daniel J. Epstein
Carol Campbell Fox
Chengyu Fu
Stanley P. Gold
Tamara Hughes Gustavson
Jane Harman
Ming Hsieh
Ray R. Irani
Suzanne Nora Johnson
Lydia H. Kennard
Kenneth R. Klein
John Kusmiersky
Daniel D. Lane
Mónica C. Lozano
John C. Martin
Kathleen L. McCarthy
Jamie McCourt
John Mork
Jerry W. Neely
C. L. Max Nikias,

President
Robert Padgett
Jane Hoffman Popovich
Blake Quinn
Lorna Y. Reed
Edward P. Roski Jr.,

Chairman
Barbara J. Rossier
William J. Schoen
William E. B. Siart
Robert H. Smith
Jeffrey H. Smulyan
Steven Spielberg
Mark A. Stevens
Ronald D. Sugar
Ratan N. Tata
Daniel M. Tsai
Ronald N. Tutor
Andrew J. Viterbi
Willis B. Wood Jr.

Life Trustees
Malcolm R. Currie
Gavin S. Herbert
B. Wayne Hughes Sr.
John F. King
William Lyon
Alfred E. Mann
Gordon S. Marshall
Harlyne Norris

University of 
Southern California 
Leadership

Toshiaki Ogasawara
J. Douglas Pardee
Joan A. Payden
Frank Price
Allen E. Puckett
Bruce M. Ramer
Steven B. Sample
Forrest N. Shumway
Richard J. Stegemeier
Peter V. Ueberroth
Gin D. Wong

Honorary Trustees
Verna B. Dauterive
Helene Galen

Academic Deans

Pinchas Cohen
USC Davis School of Gerontology

Robert A. Cutietta
USC Glorya Kaufman 
School of Dance
USC Thornton School of Music

Elizabeth M. Daley
USC School of Cinematic Arts

James G. Ellis
USC Marshall School of Business

Marilyn L. Flynn
USC School of Social Work

Karen Symms Gallagher
USC Rossier School of Education

William W. Holder
USC Leventhal School of Accounting

Steve A. Kay
USC Dornsife College of Letters,
Arts and Sciences

Jack H. Knott
USC Sol Price School of Public Policy

Qingyun Ma
USC School of Architecture

Erica Muhl
USC Roski School of Fine Arts

Carmen A. Puliafito
Keck School of Medicine of USC

Madeline Puzo
USC School of Dramatic Arts

Catherine Quinlan
USC Libraries

Robert K. Rasmussen
USC Gould School of Law

Avishai Sadan
Ostrow School of Dentistry of USC

R. Pete Vanderveen
USC School of Pharmacy

Ernest J. Wilson III
USC Annenberg School for 
Communication and Journalism

Yannis C.Yortsos
USC Viterbi School of Engineering

Officers and Executives

C. L. Max Nikias
President

Elizabeth Garrett
Provost and Senior Vice President 
for Academic Affairs

Robert Abeles
Senior Vice President, Finance, 
and Chief Financial Officer

Albert R. Checcio
Senior Vice President, 
University Advancement

Todd R. Dickey
Senior Vice President, Administration 

Thomas E. Jackiewicz
Senior Vice President and Chief 
Executive Officer for USC Health

Thomas S. Sayles
Senior Vice President, 
University Relations

Carol Mauch Amir
General Counsel and 
Secretary of the University

Patrick C. Haden
Athletic Director

Lisa Mazzocco
Chief Investment Officer

Randolph W. Hall
Vice President, Research

Katharine Harrington
Vice President, Admissions 
and Planning

Michael L. Jackson
Vice President, Student Affairs

Thomas S. Leary Jr.
Vice President, Capital Construction
and Facilities Management

Brenda K. Maceo
Vice President, Public Relations 
and Marketing

Kristina E. Raspe
Vice President, Real Estate 
Development and Asset Management

David M. Roberts
Vice President, Athletic Compliance

Margo Steurbaut
Vice President, Finance

William Watson
Vice President, 
Health Sciences Development

Michael Quick
Executive Vice Provost

Ilee Rhimes
Chief Information Officer

Erik Brink
Associate Senior Vice President, 
University Comptroller

Dennis Cornell
Chief of Staff and Associate Secretary
of the University

D
E

S
IG

N
: 

R
IC

K
 S

IM
N

E
R

 D
E

S
IG

N
 /

 P
R

IN
C

IP
A

L
 P

H
O

T
O

G
R

A
P

H
Y

: 
T

W
O

 P
O

IN
T

 P
IC

T
U

R
E

S
 /

 P
R

IN
T

IN
G

: 
C

O
LO

R
G

R
A

P
H

IC
S

7580_USCFR12.coverform.final_Layout 1  11/19/12  10:13 AM  Page 2



transforming the trojan experience

USCFR12.pgs1-18.final_USCFR  11/10/12  3:53 PM  Page 1



7580_USCFR12.pgs1-18.final_USCFR  11/19/12  8:16 AM  Page 2



Fas Regna Trojae {The Destined Reign of Troy}

These powerful words from Virgil’s Aeneid are 

inscribed on the pedestal of USC’s iconic Tommy

Trojan statue.They are also the rallying cry for the

$6 billion Campaign for the University of Southern 

California, which is {transforming} the Trojan 

experience.Already more than 150,000 members of

the Trojan Family have participated in the campaign–

proof that fundraising is about more than just dollar

signs. It’s about transformation. It’s about aspiration. It’s

about realization …of the Destined Reign of Troy. 
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Transforming Campuses Across our USC campuses,

profound physical transformations are taking place. You can

hear it in the grind of bulldozers; you can smell it in the

earthiness of freshly poured cement; you can see it in the

classic cardinal of newly laid bricks.

Last year’s leadership gifts became this year’s groundbreak-

ing ceremonies — with a $50 million gift from the Annenberg

Foundation supporting the construction of a state-of-the-art

journalism and communication building, and a $15 million

contribution from Roger and Michele Dedeaux Engemann

funding the creation of a new student health center.

Building designs are underway thanks to Verna B. 

Dauterive’s $30 million gift to erect USC’s first interdiscipli-

nary social sciences building and former USC swim team

captain Wilfred “Fred” Uytengsu’s $8 million gift to construct

a new aquatics center for Trojan student athletes. On the Health

Sciences Campus, planning is underway for two new clinical

buildings as well as a hotel and student/resident housing.

Transforming Students The transformation is also evi-

dent in the faces of students walking and biking between

classes. Through crucial gifts in support of scholarships, the

student body includes an even greater diversity of talented

scholars who otherwise would not have been able to afford

a USC education. Julie and John Mork’s historic $110 mil-

lion gift enabled the first-ever class of USC Mork Family

Scholars, many of whom attended local high schools, to

begin their undergraduate studies with full-tuition, four-

year scholarships and stipends.

All of USC’s bright, dynamic students are embarking on

new intellectual adventures, thanks to gifts made in support

of academic programs. At the newly endowed USC Sidney

Harman Academy for Polymathic Study, students and fac-

ulty come together to cross traditional disciplinary bound-

aries and revolutionize learning. The newly named and

endowed USC Sol Price School of Public Policy celebrated

a $50 million donation from the Price Family Foundation.

The visionary gift honors the life and legacy of entrepreneur

and philanthropist Sol Price. 

Transforming Faculty USC students are studying with

world-renowned teachers and mentors, as the university hires

transformative faculty members and fills newly endowed 

academic chairs. USC received its largest gift ever to endow a

4 / 2012 FINANCIAL REPORT University of Southern California

New scholarships 
are transforming the 
university to include 

a greater diversity 
of talented students 

who would not 
have otherwise been 

able to afford a 
USC education.

Campaign launch

School of Cinematic Arts
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dean’s chair: the Valerie and Ronald Sugar Dean’s Chair of the

USC Libraries. The USC School of Religion established the

first chair of Hindu studies in the United States entirely

funded by the Indian-American community. The Turpanjian

Chair in Contemporary Armenian Studies was endowed at

the USC Dornsife College of Letters, Arts and Sciences. And

the USC School of Pharmacy established the Quintiles Chair

in Pharmaceutical and Regulatory Innovation and the Quin-

tiles International Lecture Series, both housed at the Leonard

D. Schaeffer Center for Health Policy and Economics at USC.

The most ambitious fundraising campaign in the history

of higher education is providing abundant research oppor-

tunities for USC’s transformative faculty. Funding has also

poured in for the Earl and Pauline Pullias Center for Higher

Education and the USC Center for Innovation and Re-

search on Veterans and Military Families (CIR).

Transforming Medicine USC is also leading a revolu-

tion in health care. Engineers and doctors are teaming up

to develop new medical devices through HTE@USC, a

four-year program created through a collaboration between

the Keck School of Medicine of USC and the USC Viterbi

School of Engineering.

Cancer patients are receiving new hope thanks to USC's

expansion of facilities, education and research. The Kenneth T.

and Eileen L. Norris Foundation provided the lead $15 million

gift towards the construction of a new outpatient clinic build-

ing on the USC Health Sciences Campus. A leader in the field,

the USC Norris Comprehensive Cancer Center received a

five-year, $32.5 million core grant renewal from the National

Cancer Institute. The USC Urology Robotics Center of Ex-

cellence and the Program for Prostate Cancer Targeting are

also flourishing, courtesy of an anonymous $13.3 million gift.

Making a Difference Small gifts also make a big differ-

ence. Since the beginning of the campaign, more than

150,000 members of the Trojan Family have given gifts 

between $10 to $1,000. This crucial support enables USC

to educate leaders who will turn their talents to transform-

ing our campus and our world. As the Campaign demon-

strates, fundraising is about more than dollar signs and

figures followed by long strings of zeros. It’s about transfor-

mation. It’s about aspiration. It’s about realization ... of the

Destined Reign of Troy.

$50m
FOR NEWLY NAMED USC SOL PRICE 

SCHOOL OF PUBLIC POLICY

Morelle Arian
USC Mork 
Family Scholar
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Professor David Sloane teaches 
undergraduates the history of 
planning and development in the 
newly named and endowed USC 
Sol Price School of Public Policy, 
which received a $50 million 
donation from the Price Family 
Foundation.
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the Eli and Edythe Broad Center
for Regenerative Medicine and
Stem Cell Research at USC. In
addition to conducting research,
McMahon will take his expertise
to the classroom where he will
teach graduate students, and, 
at his request, at least one under-
graduate class each year in the
USC Dornsife College of Letters,
Arts and Sciences. 

Jacob Soll, recipient of a 
2009 Guggenheim Fellowship
and a 2012 MacArthur Fellow-
ship — the “genius grant” — is
an interdisciplinary scholar and
professor of history and account-
ing. He has written on the role 
of information networks, science
and accounting in the court of
Louis XIV, and is currently work-
ing on a cultural history of 
accounting and politics. 

USC has pledged $2 billion in
campaign funds toward faculty
hiring and program endowments
that will attract similarly high-cal-
iber teachers and researchers for
years to come.

Notable Faculty Join USC
What do the concertmaster of the
New York Philharmonic, a leader
in stem cell research and a “genius
grant”-winning historian have in
common? They’re just a few of
the transformative faculty who
joined the Trojan Family in 2012.

Glenn Dicterow, named 
the inaugural Robert Mann 
Endowed Chair in Violin and
Chamber Music, currently leads
the New York Philharmonic as
concertmaster, a position he has
held for more than 30 years —
the longest tenure in the orches-
tra’s history. At USC, he will
teach master classes, lead chamber
groups and teach private lessons.

Andrew P. McMahon, a Provost
Professor and the inauguralW.M.
Keck Professor of Stem Cell 
Biology and Regenerative Medi-
cine, taught for nearly 20 years 
at Harvard University, where he
served on the executive commit-
tee of the Harvard Stem Cell 
Institute. He is now director of 

“Faculty are the foundation 
of a great university,” said Eliza-
beth Garrett, provost and senior
vice president for academic affairs.
“Much of our campaign is about
supporting those who are here, at-
tracting more of the best, strength-
ening infrastructure and providing
an environment where their 
research flourishes.”

Online Education 
Expands the Classroom
Thanks to USC’s expanding on-
line education programs, “going
back to school” can happen 
anywhere at any time.

Currently 5,500 students 
are enrolled in accredited online 
master’s degree and executive and
continuing education programs
offered by nine USC schools.
These programs combine streamed
and archived lectures and presen-
tations, video chat and social
media study groups to create an
authentic classroom experience.
In order to maintain USC’s aca-
demic rigor and educational value,
distance education students must

meet the same admission standards
as their on-campus peers.

At the USC Rossier School 
of Education, which graduated 
its 1,200th online student this
summer, students from 12 coun-
tries and all 50 states are pursuing
Master of Arts in Teaching (MAT)
and Master of Education in 
Advanced Instruction degrees.
Grouped in cohorts, students 
interact with their teachers and
peers through social media and
real-time Webcam discussions and
balance their online classes with
field training in their community
schools. USC Rossier’s MAT
program received the 2011 Inter-
national Award for Innovative
Practices in Higher Education
from the American Council 
on Education. 

At the USC School of Social
Work, nearly 1,600 students are
pursuing a Master of Social Work
through an online education plat-
form called the Virtual Academic
Center, while doing field training
in local agencies and government

$2.19 BILLION 
IN GIFTS 
TO DATE

$6 BILLION
FUNDRAISING

GOAL

“USC faculty have embraced the potential 
of online graduate education and have eagerly 

explored and experimented with models 
that can engage learners and spark powerful 

ideas, fresh insights and new knowledge.”
– C. L. Max Nikias, USC President
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USC expects to double online
enrollment and degree offerings
in the next five years, expanding
the reach of its educational mis-
sion well beyond its physical
boundaries. President C. L. Max
Nikias lauded that spirit of innova-
tion, saying: “USC faculty have
embraced the potential of online
graduate education and have ea-
gerly explored and experimented
with models that can engage learn-
ers and spark powerful ideas, fresh
insights and new knowledge.”

USC Extends its
International Reach 
In the words of USC’s Strategic
Vision — “Today’s great universi-
ties are called to address global
challenges.”This year USC put
those words into action through a 
host of worldwide endeavors.

USC President C. L. Max
Nikias led a delegation of univer-
sity trustees, senior administrators,
deans and faulty members to 
Israel in February to advance 
potential collaborations with uni-
versities and research institutes.

offices. The program provides 
a way for military spouses to 
pursue quality graduate education
despite frequent relocation: 40
percent of its students are military
or military dependents.

At the USC Viterbi School 
of Engineering, which celebrated
the 40th anniversary of its dis-
tance education programs this
year, 750 students are working to-
ward 40 master’s degrees and cer-
tificates through Viterbi’s Distance
Education Network in fields such
as computer science, electrical en-
gineering and green technology. 

And at the USC Davis School 
of Gerontology, the world’s first
school to offer an online geron-
tology degree, geriatric care pro-
fessionals can now choose from
five interactive Web-based pro-
grams: Master of Arts, Master 
of Science, Master of Aging Ser-
vices Management, Master of 
Long Term Care Administration,
and a graduate-level certificate 
in gerontology. 

8 / 2012 FINANCIAL REPORT University of Southern California

The trip featured meetings with
top leaders including President
Shimon Peres, as well as a visit 
to Yad Vashem, the world’s 
largest repository of Holocaust 
information.

USC also strengthened the
Trojan presence in Asia. In June
2012, the Office of Global Initia-
tives opened the USC Beijing 
office to further “support global
recruitment and work with aca-
demic units to cultivate research
partnerships, service/outreach
programs and global opportuni-
ties for students.”

USC continued its outreach 
to China with Orientation Pro-
grams’ International Kickstart,
which sent staff members to Bei-
jing, Hong Kong and Shanghai 
to help incoming Chinese fresh-
men start their USC experience
and register for classes. 

In December 2011, a delega-
tion of USC deans traveled to São
Paulo and Rio de Janeiro, Brazil,
to learn about national trends in
higher education policy; forge 

More international 
students at USC than 
any other University 
INSTITUTE OF INTERNATIONAL EDUCATION’S 

OPEN DOORS REPORT

More international 
students than any other

American university 
INSTITUTE OF INTERNATIONAL EDUCATION’S 

OPEN DOORS REPORT

relationships with prominent
Brazilian universities, corporations
and policymakers; and connect
with USC alumni. 

Students also embraced USC’s
tradition of international engage-
ment. Led by quarterback Matt
Barkley, a contingent of 16 foot-
ball players and several other 
students traveled to Haiti for a
week in May, where they helped
build homes and deliver supplies
to schools and orphanages. 

Dozens of other students volun-
teered through the alternative
winter and spring break programs,
teaching English to low-income
youth in Thailand, partnering with
community organizations to clean
up beaches in Isla Mujeres, work-
ing with children in impoverished
areas of Guatemala and fostering
social entrepreneurship in the 
coffee industry in Honduras.

And for the tenth straight year,
USC was home to more interna-
tional students than any other
American university, according 

President C. L. Max Nikias

“As countries and societies of our world become 
tightly interconnected, and as the economic center of 
gravity is shifting from the Atlantic toward the Pacific, 
I believe USC has a special role to play. In this 
Age of the Pacific, USC is uniquely suited for a 
leadership role to bring shape to this change.”
– C. L. Max Nikias, USC President
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at the new 2001 Soto Street
building offers students, faculty
and staff state-of-the-art equip-
ment and exercise classes.

Students can use the fitness
center for free, and approximately
350 students use the facility each
day. Paid memberships include
more than 600 faculty and staff.

“Students are appreciative 
that we have a fitness center here
for them to work out,” said Arvin
Varma, director of the HSC Fit-
ness Center and associate director
of Recreational Sports. Student
feedback, he said, has been very
positive.

Courses are also offered in the
three-story, 120,000-square-foot
Soto building, which also includes
laboratories and research facilities.
Students, faculty and staff can 
grab a snack at Seeds Café on the
ground level or relax in the multi-
purpose garden courtyard adja-
cent to the building. 

Other projects in the works on
the Health Sciences Campus in-
clude undergrounding of utilities
and breaking ground for the new

to the Institute of International
Education’s Open Doors report. 

In the words of President 
C. L. Max Nikias, “As countries
and societies of our world become
tightly interconnected, and as the
economic center of gravity is
shifting from the Atlantic toward
the Pacific, I believe USC has a
special role to play. As cultures and
values and ideas collide in this Age
of the Pacific, USC is uniquely
suited for a leadership role to
bring shape to this change.”

Health Sciences Campus
Gets Makeover
Students on the Health Sciences
Campus can now walk on tree-
lined sidewalks and work out at
the new fitness center thanks to
recent renovations. 

“It is going to look like a
whole different campus,” said
Laurie Stone, executive director
of land use and planning for Real
Estate and Asset Management. 

Opened in fall 2011, the
10,000-square-foot fitness center

Norris Healthcare Consultation
Center III (HCC III). Located at
the southeast corner of campus,
the 118,000-square-foot HCC 
III will be a cancer outpatient
clinical facility. 

Adding to campus aesthetics, a
streetscaping project will feature
more landscaped walking areas.
“The plan will allow us to nar-
row the traffic lanes, significantly
widen the sidewalks, and then put
in additional trees,” Stone said.
“On San Pablo, we’ll have double
rows of street trees for people to
walk through, and there will be
brick banding on the sidewalks,
intersections and crosswalks.”

Landscaping completed last year
provided additional trees and plants
on edges of major streets such as
San Pablo, Biggy and Zonal. 

“This campus will soon offer
the most welcoming face possible
to potential patients,” said USC
President C. L. Max Nikias, “and
it will offer new grace and poetry
to inspire the faculty and staff and
students who pour out their time
and energy and passion here.”

Honoring Those Who Serve
Jeffrey Ting, a U.S. Marine
Corps veteran who served in
Afghanistan, came to USC as a
sophomore accounting major in
fall 2010. Moving from military
life to student life can be tough,
he said. Ting and his fellow veter-
ans are not only older than most
other students on the USC cam-
pus, he explained, “but we also
have a unique life experience.”

USC helps student veterans
navigate that challenge. Transfer
and Veteran Student Programs
(TVSP), the USC Veterans Asso-
ciation, the Schoen Family Schol-
arship Program for Veterans and
other campus initiatives create 
a supportive environment that 
fosters academic success.

USC enrolls nearly 500 
student veterans, according to
Syreeta Greene, assistant director
of TVSP. This new program was
created by the Division of Stu-
dent Affairs in summer 2011, 
“to let veterans know that USC
does appreciate the service that

10,000
SQUARE FOOTAGE OF THE NEW

HEALTH SCIENCES CAMPUS FITNESS CENTER
Jacob Soll

Health Sciences Fitness Center

5,500
NUMBER OF STUDENTS ENROLLED

IN USC ONLINE PROGRAMS 
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MBA ’63 and his wife Sharon.
The Schoen’s support for the
scholarship program includes a
recent $10 million gift.

Naval ROTC sophomore
Daniel Luciani echoes Lerri
Deguzman’s appreciation for not
only the financial support, but
also the moral support for mili-
tary students at USC. 

“Every Thursday, [Naval
ROTC students] have to wear
our uniforms on campus for our
professional development lab,” 
he said. “There hasn’t been one
day when I haven’t been stopped 
and told, ‘Thank you.’”

Mork Scholars Say Thanks
They’re pursuing different majors,
come from 15 different states and
have different aspirations. But
there’s one thing an exemplary
group of 20 students have in
common: they’re the inaugural
group of Mork Scholars who 
arrived at USC last fall.

Last year, philanthropists and
USC supporters Julie and John
Mork gave a $110 million gift to

they’ve given and to let them
know they don’t have to go
through USC alone,” Greene said.

TVSP links student veterans
with resources, such as the USC
Veterans Certifying Office, which
connects them with federal educa-
tion assistance. In addition, TVSP
hosts programs ranging from peer
mentoring to resume workshops. 

A number of student groups,
the largest being the USC Veter-
ans Association, also serve USC's
student veterans. These students
often have special needs for sup-
port, said Lerri Deguzman, a for-
mer Marine and business major
who was association president in
2011-12. Working with Greene,
he transformed the group from
primarily a social club to an 
organization that offers concrete
assistance – connecting veterans
with resources and sponsoring
professional development events.

Deguzman is a grateful benefi-
ciary of yet another resource, the
Schoen Family Scholarship Pro-
gram for Veterans, endowed by
trustee and Korean War Veteran
William J. Schoen BS ’60, 

create the USC Mork Family
Scholars program, which funds
undergraduate scholarships
awarded to high school seniors
who have demonstrated extraor-
dinary academic achievement and
civic engagement. For the first
group of scholars — now USC
sophomores — the full tuition,
four-year scholarships with addi-
tional $5,000 annual living
stipends have been life changing.

“Everything relied on me get-
ting a merit scholarship, because I
have two younger sisters that my
parents also have to put through
school,” said neuroscience major
Matthew Agam, from Portland,
Ore. “Getting a scholarship was
the determining factor of
whether I could come to USC 
or not. Being a Mork Scholar has
definitely connected me with a
group of students I’ll be with for
the next four years. It’s been a 
really nice support system.”

Morelle Arian said her parents
had been saving for her college
tuition, but they didn’t realize 
tuition in the United States was
so much more expensive than 

in their native Israel. “Tuition 
became a big issue,” explained
Arian, an engineering major from
Seattle, Wash. “I was going to go 
to school in Washington so I
could get the in-state tuition; my
other viable option was a school
that gave me a big scholarship.”
Since USC was her first choice,
she said, “Getting the Mork
Scholarship was amazing. That
was a very good day!”

Art major Natasha Cirisano 
aspires to open her own design
firm. For the Miami native, the
education she’s receiving as a
Mork Scholar is equipping her 
to achieve her dreams. “I like the
way USC integrates the real
world with the classes,” she said.
“It’s very connected with LA. 
I’m able to set my roots in a
world that I want to embark in.”

But that’s not all her Mork
scholarship has provided. “I had
heard about the Trojan Family,
and I wondered if that type 
of community really happens,” 
she said. “It actually does.”

“Getting a scholarship was the
determining factor of whether I could 

come to USC or not. Being a Mork 
Scholar has definitely connected me 

with a group of students I’ll be 
with for the next four years.”

– Matthew Agam, USC Mork Family Scholar 
Matthew Agam
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USC Leventhal School 
of Accounting 
The USC Leventhal School of
Accounting made major curricu-
lum changes for the undergradu-
ate and graduate programs during
2011-2012. In addition to creat-
ing courses that address new edu-
cational requirements for CPA
licensure, the school plans to in-
troduce the first international-
study course for accounting
master’s degree students and to
ensure that new and existing
courses emphasize the ethical
principles and technical proficien-
cies required in an increasingly
complex and constantly evolving
profession. Dean William W.
Holder and the USC Leventhal
faculty are not only driving this
major effort in curriculum revi-
sion but also recruiting more
high-caliber colleagues to the
school. With a commitment to
thought leadership, USC Leven-
thal hired several new faculty
members during the year.

USC School of Architecture
The USC School of Architecture,
which began as a university de-
partment in 1916, was the first
accredited school of architecture
in Southern California. Its 3,000
graduates include two Pritzker
Prize winners, Frank Gehry ’54
and Thom Mayne ’69, and an
array of other important figures
who are advancing modernism,
prefabrication, sustainability and
innovative urban design. The
school is committed to studying
and supporting the city of Los
Angeles, and is recognized as a
center of tremendous creativity
and diversity that claims a double
frontier in both America and the
Pacific Rim. The school offers
bachelor’s degrees in architecture,
architectural studies and landscape
architecture and both master’s 
degrees and certificates in archi-
tecture, building science, heritage
conservation and landscape 
architecture.

Academic Highlights

“Faculty are the foundation of a great 
university. Much of our campaign is about 
supporting those who are here, attracting 

more of the best, strengthening infrastructure 
and providing an environment where 

their research flourishes.”
– Elizabeth Garrett, USC Provost

INTERNATIONAL
STUDENTS

7,226 
19%

TOTAL 
STUDENTS
FALL 2011

38,784
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USC School of Cinematic Arts
During the past year, the USC
School of Cinematic Arts was
rated the number one school for
the study of cinematic arts in the
world by The Hollywood Reporter.
It announced a new BFA in 
Film and Television Production,
as well as the Dino and Martha
De Laurentiis Endowed Profes-
sorship and the Cecil B. DeMille
Chair in Silent Film. Next year,
the school will open the doors 
of the Phase III Cinematic Arts
Complex: a state-of-the-art facil-
ity that will house the Interactive
Media Division, the Institute for
Multimedia Literacy and the 
interdivisional Media Arts and
Practice Ph.D. program.

USC Marshall School
of Business
Under the leadership of Dean
James G. Ellis, USC Marshall de-
veloped a strategic plan in 2011-
2012 highlighting Marshall’s 
key strengths: its commitment to
global business, entrepreneurial
spirit and location in a creative
capital. Highlights of the year in-
cluded: the hiring of 14 new fac-
ulty as part of Marshall’s Thought
Leadership Initiative; the 25th
Asia/Pacific Business Outlook
Conference, hosted annually by
the school’s Center for Interna-
tional Business Education and
Research, which has supported an
estimated 7,000 business leaders
and entrepreneurs in its history;
and the 40th anniversary of the
Lloyd Greif Center for Entrepre-
neurial Studies, which was cele-
brated with multiple events and
venture competitions open to
USC students and alumni.  

USC Dornsife College of
Letters, Arts and Sciences
USC Dornsife welcomed Steve
Kay as its 21st dean and holder of
the Anna H. Bing Dean’s Chair.
Kay, a member of the National
Academy of Sciences, was previ-
ously dean of biological sciences
at the University of California,
San Diego. In 2011-2012, 
USC Dornsife faculty from the
humanities, social sciences and
natural sciences continued to 
receive international recognition,
including election to the Na-
tional Academy of Engineering
and the American Association 
for the Advancement of Science,
and broad sponsorship for their
scholarship from numerous pri-
vate foundations as well as varied
federal sources. Ten undergradu-
ates, whose academic achieve-
ments address questions of human
value and vital social challenges,
were selected as Dornsife Schol-
ars and received $10,000 toward
graduate or professional studies.

USC Annenberg School
for Communication 
and Journalism
On November 8, 2012, USC
Annenberg celebrated the
groundbreaking of the new Wallis
Annenberg Hall, an 88,000-
square-foot building where col-
laborative learning and research
spaces will foster creativity and
accelerate the school’s trajectory
into the future. Students and 
faculty received dozens of na-
tional and international awards,
including Norway’s Holberg
Prize presented to Manuel
Castells, a national equity and 
diversity award to the School of
Journalism, and the election of
Dean Ernest J. Wilson III into the
American Academy of Arts and
Sciences. USC Annenberg also
launched its first online degree in
fall 2011, a Master of Communi-
cation Management, enrolling an
inaugural class of 100 national
and international students.

7,000
BUSINESS LEADERS AND ENTREPRENEURS 

SUPPORTED BY USC MARSHALL SCHOOL

USC ANNENBERG SCHOOL FOR

COMMUNICATION AND JOURNALISM

USC School of Cinematic Arts
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USC School of Dramatic Arts
On July 1, 2012, the School of
Theatre became the School of
Dramatic Arts, a name that better
expresses the school’s mission to
prepare students for a future that
embraces many different forms 
of dramatic expression and plat-
forms. The school was named
among the top 25 drama schools
in the English-speaking world 
by The Hollywood Reporter, and it
graduated the largest class in its
history. Theatre major Xin Yi Bao
became the first USC student to
receive the highly competitive
Jack Kent Cooke Graduate Arts
Award, given to only 15 students
nationwide, for graduate study 
in the arts.

Ostrow School
of Dentistry of USC
2012 marked the 115th anniver-
sary of the Ostrow School of
Dentistry of USC, and on March
23, the school held a kickoff cele-
bration for the launch of its $115
million fundraising initiative, part
of the Campaign for the Univer-
sity of Southern California. Dur-
ing the event, the Ostrow School
of Dentistry Board of Councilors
announced their commitment to
a $10 million collective gift to the
school. Central fundraising goals
for the Ostrow campaign initia-
tive include: endowed scholarship
support for students, endowed
positions and research support for
faculty members, increased fund-
ing for clinical and community
outreach activity, and improve-
ments to school facilities.
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USC Rossier School
of Education
In 2012, USC Rossier opened
USC Hybrid High School, a
public charter for 160 students 
in downtown Los Angeles. This
one-of-a-kind learning environ-
ment individually tailors courses,
schedules and goals to meet the
needs of students whose lives 
are challenged by job and family
responsibilities. Also this year,
Rossier’s state-of-the-art online
degree programs for teachers and
school leaders continued to grow
exponentially, with the online
Master of Arts in Teaching (MAT)
graduating its 1,200th student. 
In addition, the school began
preparing worldwide education
leaders through its Global Execu-
tive Ed.D., while its research cen-
ters built tools for college access
and success that have a direct 
impact on high-need students.  

The newly-named
USC School of 

Dramatic Arts was 
named among the top 
25 drama schools in 
the English-speaking

world byThe Hollywood
Reporter and graduated

the largest class in 
its history. 

USC SCHOOL OF DRAMATIC ARTS

USC Rossier School

USC Viterbi School
of Engineering
In 2011, the USC Viterbi School
of Engineering unveiled the world’s
first operational quantum com-
puting system at a university, the
USC Lockheed Martin Quantum
Computing Center. In collabora-
tion with the Keck School of
Medicine of USC, USC Viterbi
also launched HTE@USC, a
four-year program allowing engi-
neers and doctors to create new
medical devices. Another interdis-
ciplinary effort with the USC
School of Cinematic Arts, USC
Games, has been named the 
number one video games design
program by The Princeton Review
for the third straight year. Through
the new iPodia Alliance, Viterbi
students can take collaborative
online classes with students
around the world. USC Viterbi
has recruited some of the nation’s
most transformational faculty:
in the past four years, six were
named among the world’s 35 
top innovators under the age of 
35 by MIT’s Technology Review. 

$10m
TO NAME AND ENDOW THE USC SIDNEY HARMAN

ACADEMY FOR POLYMATHIC STUDY
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USC Davis School
of Gerontology
The USC Davis School of
Gerontology welcomed a new
dean, Pinchas Cohen, M.D., for-
mer UCLA School of Medicine’s
vice chair for research. Highlights
of the year included the creation
of the USC Longevity Institute
and prestigious awards won by
several professors, including
Kelvin Davies being named a
chevalier (knight) of l’Ordre 
national du Mérite (the National
Order of Merit) by the French
government, Caleb Finch earning
USC’s Presidential Medallion,
and Eileen Crimmins capping 
off an impressive year with her
election to the Institute of Medi-
cine (IOM), one of the world’s
most prestigious honors in the
fields of health and medicine. 
She also received the Gerontolog-
ical Society of America’s Robert
W. Kleemeier Award, one of 
the most highly regarded awards
in the field. 

USC Roski School
of Fine Arts
In 2011-2012, the USC Roski
School of Fine Arts completely
renovated the main Watt Hall 
office suite and completed a major
upgrade of the Helen Lindhurst
Fine Arts Gallery. Student enroll-
ment grew steadily throughout
the school, especially at the un-
dergraduate level. USC Roski 
faculty members participated in 
a number of significant interna-
tional exhibitions, including
Sharon Lockhart’s Four Exercises 
in Eshkol-Wachman Movement 
Notation System, which opened 
as a two-part exhibition simulta-
neously at the Israel Museum,
Jerusalem, and at the Center for
Contemporary Art, Tel Aviv, before
traveling to Los Angeles,  New
York and  Vienna. USC Roski 
students heard from and interacted
with prominent international 
visiting artists and curators, includ-
ing Thomas Demand, Helen
Molesworth and Mark Leckey.

USC Gould School of Law
The Class of 2011 achieved a 91
percent bar passage rate — the
highest in the state of California.
Building on its impressive faculty,
USC Gould welcomed two lead-
ing scholars, both from North-
western University: Lee Epstein, 
a USC Provost Professor and the
Rader Family Trustee Chair in
Law; and Nancy Staudt, the 
Edward G. Lewis Chair in Law. 
As the practice of law becomes
increasingly globalized, USC
Gould has expanded its exchange
programs in Europe, Australia 
and South America, providing
J.D. candidates with more oppor-
tunities to learn about foreign
legal systems and to study abroad. 

USC Libraries
The USC Libraries received two
of the most generous and vision-
ary gifts in their history this year.
The Harman Family Foundation
made a gift of $10 million to name
and endow the USC Sidney 
Harman Academy for Polymathic
Study. The academy brings to-
gether students and distinguished
faculty to encourage integrative,
interdisciplinary approaches to 
intellectual inquiry. USC Trustee
Ronald Sugar and his wife Valerie
donated $5 million to endow the
Valerie and Ronald Sugar Dean’s
Chair of the USC Libraries. Dean
Catherine Quinlan is the inaugu-
ral holder of the chair, and the gift
supports collections acquisitions,
development of innovative digital
collections and other decanal pri-
orities throughout the libraries.

MIT’S TECHNOLOGY REVIEW

91%
USC GOULD 2011 BAR PASSAGE RATE,

HIGHEST IN CALIFORNIA
Ostrow School of Dentistry  of USC

John McKay Center
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Keck Medical Center of USC
Keck Hospital of USC and USC
Norris Cancer Hospital placed
among the best in the nation in
the 2011-2012 U.S. News & World
Report rankings of “America’s Best
Hospitals.” The Keck Medical
Center of USC expanded its ac-
cess to San Gabriel Valley residents
with the opening of an expansive
medical office in Pasadena with
more than 40 faculty physicians.
This new site complements loca-
tions in downtown Los Angeles,
La Cañada Flintridge and Beverly
Hills. An anonymous $13.3 mil-
lion gift will expand services in
the USC Urology Robotics Cen-
ter of Excellence and the Program
for Prostate Cancer Targeting. 
Significant new appointments at
the Keck Medical Center of USC 
include: Eric L. Chang, chief of
radiation oncology, recruited 
from the University of Texas MD 
Anderson Cancer Center, and 
Jay R. Lieberman, orthopaedist-
in-chief, from the University 
of Connecticut Health Center
and the New England Muscu-
loskeletal Institute.

Keck School of Medicine
of USC
A $15 million donation from the
Kenneth T. and Eileen L. Norris
Foundation provided the lead gift
toward construction of a new out-
patient clinic building to expand
cancer care on the USC Health
Sciences Campus. The USC 
Norris Comprehensive Cancer
Center was awarded a five-year,
$32.5 million core grant renewal
from the National Cancer Insti-
tute to support clinical, research
and educational programs. Trans-
formative faculty members re-
cruited include: University of
Michigan physician-scientist
Stephen B. Gruber, named direc-
tor of the USC Norris Compre-
hensive Cancer Center; Harvard 
University scientist Andrew P.
McMahon, named director of 
the Eli and Edythe Broad Center
for Regenerative Medicine and
Stem Cell Research at USC; and
University of Rochester physi-
cian-scientist Berislav V. Zlokovic, 
appointed director of the Zilkha
Neurogenetic Institute.

16 / 2012 FINANCIAL REPORT University of Southern California

USC Thornton School
of Music
The USC Thornton School of
Music had an unprecedented year.
The Piatigorsky International
Cello Festival received worldwide
coverage. The school announced
notable new faculty hires includ-
ing Glenn Dicterow, Daniel 
Carlin and Ken Foster. Faculty 
received an American Academy 
of Arts and Letters award, were
elected to the American Academy
of Arts and Sciences, had docu-
mentaries created about their
work and had research featured at
conferences such as the Interna-
tional Society for Music Educa-
tion. The USC Thornton Jazz
Orchestra won top collegiate big
band at the 2011 Monterey Jazz
Next Generation Festival. Other
student recognition included win-
ning NBC’s The Sing Off, winning
the Max-Rostal Competition for
Violin in Berlin, earning first
prize in the 2011 SCI/ASCAP
National Student Commission
Competition and being featured
prominently on The Hunger
Games soundtrack.

Division of Occupational
Science and Occupational
Therapy
In early 2012, the USC Division
of Occupational Science and Oc-
cupational Therapy was ranked as
the nation’s number one occupa-
tional therapy graduate educa-
tional program by U.S. News &
World Report. USC has held this
top honor for more years than all
other occupational therapy edu-
cational programs combined. In
one of the largest one-time ex-
pansions in its 70-year history, the
division appointed five tenure-
track faculty members. After years
of planning, a redesigned curricu-
lum was launched for the entry-
level graduate professional
program, and faculty won four
extramurally funded research
grants including an innovative in-
terdisciplinary project in collabo-
ration with dentistry faculty at
Children’s Hospital Los Angeles.

$15m
GIFT FOR NEW OUTPATIENT CLINIC BUILDING 

TO EXPAND CANCER CARE 

Nation’s number one 
occupational therapy 

graduate program
U.S. NEWS & WORLD REPORT

2012 RANKING

Health Sciences Campus
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Division of Biokinesiology
and Physical Therapy 
In 2011-2012, the number-one-
ranked Division of Biokinesiol-
ogy and Physical Therapy saw a
20 percent increase in applicants
for its Doctor of Physical Therapy
program; boasted more Worthing-
ham Fellows — the profession’s
top honor — than any other U.S.
physical therapy program; added 
a residency program in pediatric
physical therapy in partnership
with Children’s Hospital Los An-
geles; saw a 10 percent increase in
visits by patients to the USC PT
Associates faculty practices; and
enjoyed a steady expansion of the
number and quality of its contin-
uing education courses.

USC School of Pharmacy
When the Centers for Medicare
and Medicaid Services (CMS) 
requested proposals for innovative
models of care addressing today’s
most urgent needs, more than
3,000 applications were submit-
ted. Just over 100 were funded,
including that of the USC School
of Pharmacy, which places phar-
macists in safety-net clinics as a
way to improve health outcomes
while reducing costs. The $12
million project promises some
$43 million in savings, and its im-
pact on both outcomes and costs
is being analyzed by the Schaeffer
Center for Health Policy and
Economics, a partnership between
the USC School of Pharmacy
and the USC Sol Price School 
of Public Policy. The grant, the
largest ever received by the
School of Pharmacy, allows the
school to expand its nationally
renowned service of providing
medication management to 
underserved patients.

USC Sol Price School
of Public Policy
This past year, the school received
a $50 million naming gift from the
Price Family Foundation to honor
the legacy of the late Sol Price, a
visionary entrepreneur who pio-
neered new practices in retail, real
estate and philanthropy. This gift
creates a remarkable alignment 
between his life and the school’s
mission: to improve the quality 
of life for people and their com-
munities worldwide. The naming 
gift also establishes the Sol Price 
Center for Social Innovation.
USC Price rose to number six 
in U.S. News & World Report’s
“America’s Best Graduate Schools,”
among 266 public affairs schools
across the country — its fifth 
consecutive top-10 ranking. These
rankings reflect the school’s posi-
tion as a leader in scholarship and
research, and acknowledge its con-
tributions to helping solve some 
of the most critical and complex
issues facing our world today.

USC School of Social Work
The USC School of Social Work
has experienced tremendous
growth, thanks to its national
Web-based Master of Social Work
(MSW) program, which enrolls
close to 1,100 students across 
47 states. That’s in addition to 
the nearly 1,200 students at the
school’s four other academic cen-
ters. The school also introduced
evidence-based training for all 
students in field education, as well
as telehealth outreach in field in-
struction. A $40 million research
portfolio and prestigious faculty
hires have bolstered its profile in
the areas of child development 
and children’s services, substance
abuse among Latinos, serious
mental illness, homelessness, health
disparities among the aging, and
psychological health and school
adjustment in military families 
and service members. A school 
research initiative is changing how
Americans view military families.
Jill Biden, wife of Vice President
Joe Biden, was welcomed to cam-
pus for a discussion on becoming
more responsive to their needs.

USC SCHOOL OF SOCIAL WORK

USC Sol Price School of Public Policy

$12m
FOR INNVOVATIVE MODELS OF CARE

USC SCHOOL OF PHARMACY
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Report of Independent Auditors

The Board of Trustees of the University of Southern California

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated balance sheet and the related consolidated statements of 
activities, and cash flows, which appears on pages 21 through 37, present fairly, in all material respects, the 
consolidated financial position of the University of Southern California and its subsidiaries (the “university”) 
at June 30, 2012, and the changes in their consolidated net assets and their cash flows for the year then 
ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. These 
financial statements are the responsibility of the university’s management. Our responsibility is to express an 
opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. The prior year summarized comparative informa-
tion has been derived from the university’s 2011 financial statements, and in our report dated October 19, 
2011, we expressed an unqualified opinion on those financial statements. We conducted our audit of these 
statements in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those 
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the  
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence 
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used 
and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. 
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

Los Angeles, California 
October 11, 2012

12_USCFR_final_19-50.indd   19 11/10/12   2:27 PM



20 / 2012 FINANCIAL REPORT University of Southern California

University of Southern California 
Financial Statements

USCFR.revision_p17+20_USCFR  11/16/12  10:13 AM  Page 20



University of Southern California  2012 FINANCIAL REPORT / 21

Consolidated Balance Sheet
in thousands

June 30 June 30 
2012 2011 

Assets A B

Cash and cash equivalents  $906,400 $889,233

Accounts receivable 298,759 273,988

Notes receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts, $6,289 (2012), $7,367 (2011) 84,122 83,620

Pledges receivable 474,051 434,356

Investments 3,865,127 3,650,617

Inventories, prepaid expenses and other assets 153,579 148,488

Property, plant and equipment, net 2,309,206 2,172,430

Total Assets $8,091,244 $7,652,732

Liabilities
Accounts payable $163,497 $145,338

Accrued liabilities 325,093 273,122

Refundable advances 18,959 18,501

Current portion of long-term debt 5,495 5,280

Deposits and deferred revenue 153,258 131,673

Actuarial liability for annuities payable 145,355 143,303

Federal student loan funds 67,410 67,812

Asset retirement obligations 101,437 97,691

Capital lease obligation 59,944 60,696

Long-term debt 1,243,705 968,081

Other liabilities 9,915 12,377

Total Liabilities 2,294,068 1,923,874

Net Assets
Unrestricted 2,636,597 2,644,220

Temporarily restricted 1,386,818 1,449,152

Permanently restricted 1,773,761 1,635,486

Total Net Assets 5,797,176 5,728,858

Total Liabilities and Net Assets  $8,091,244 $7,652,732

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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Consolidated Statement of Activities
in thousands 
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Year Ended Year Ended
June 30, 2012 June 30, 2011

Temporarily Permanently
Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total Total

Net Assets Net Assets Net Assets Net Assets Net Assets

Revenues A B C D E

Student tuition and fees $1,365,963 $1,365,963 $1,267,545

  Less financial aid (388,803) (388,803) (356,859

Net student tuition and fees 977,160 977,160 910,686

Endowment income 56,141 $441 56,582 53,200

Investment and other income 11,861 167 12,028 4,689

Net (depreciation) appreciation in fair value of investments (27,019) ($29,590) (3,785) (60,394)  624,958

Government contracts and grants 323,789 323,789 350,827

Recovery of indirect costs 132,012 132,012 132,254

Gifts and pledges 295,538 93,873 138,499 527,910 681,267

Sales and service 28,902 28,902 31,029

Auxiliary enterprises 254,857 254,857 243,011

Health care services 882,133 882,133 811,538

Other 101,280 101,280 95,705

Present value adjustment to annuities payable 518 (3,063) (2,545) (16,499

Net assets released from restrictions/redesignations 121,119 (127,135) 6,016

Total Revenues 3,157,773 (62,334) 138,275 3,233,714 3,922,665

Expenses

Educational and general activities 2,078,848 2,078,848 1,931,735

Health care services 864,536 864,536 799,944

Depreciation and amortization 159,238 159,238 153,647

Interest on indebtedness 62,774 62,774 45,413

Total Expenses 3,165,396 3,165,396 2,930,739

Increase (decrease) in Net Assets (7,623) (62,334) 138,275 68,318 991,926

Beginning Net Assets 2,644,220 1,449,152 1,635,486 5,728,858 4,736,932

Ending Net Assets $2,636,597 $1,386,818 $1,773,761 $5,797,176 $5,728,858

Nature of specific net assets

Internally designated $58,434 $58,434 $71,225

Gift and departmental 476,750 476,750 454,026

Externally restricted $71,739 $35,120 106,859 74,006

Pledges 231,452 242,599 474,051 434,356

Unexpended endowment income 191,901 191,901 181,710

Annuity and living trusts 45,313 73,269 118,582 128,410

True endowment and net appreciation 1,038,314 1,422,773 2,461,087 2,447,866

Funds functioning as endowment 1,027,846 1,027,846 1,069,307

Debt service funds 74,825 74,825 71,794

Invested in plant 806,841 806,841 796,158

$2,636,597 $1,386,818 $1,773,761 $5,797,176 $5,728,858

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
in thousands

Year Ended Year Ended 
 June 30, 2012 June 30, 2011

Cash Flows from Operating Activities A B

Change in Net Assets $68,318 $991,926

Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash provided by 
  operating activities: 

Depreciation and amortization 159,238 153,647

Loss on the disposal/sale of plant assets 2,101  2,606

In-kind receipt of securities, property, plant and equipment (38,587)  (26,946

Present value adjustment to annuities payable 2,476  16,536

Increase in accounts receivable (24,771)  (44,374

Increase in pledges receivable (109,466)  (281,494

Increase in inventories, prepaid expenses and other assets (27,386)  (27,878

Increase in accounts payable 5,342  5,813

Increase in accrued liabilities 86,953  22,579

Increase (decrease) in refundable advances 458  (22,686

Increase in deposits and deferred revenue 21,585 10,010

Decrease in other liabilities (2,462)  (2,958

Contributions restricted for property, plant and equipment and permanent investment (125,882)  (89,958

Net realized gain on sale of investments (111,804)  (162,941

Net unrealized depreciation (appreciation) in investments 172,187  (462,197

  Net cash provided by operating activities 78,300 81,685

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Proceeds from note collections 12,264  12,551

Notes issued  (11,688)  (9,264

Proceeds from sale and maturity of investments 2,257,116 1,980,419

Purchase of investments (2,524,284)  (1,859,665

Purchase of property, plant and equipment (279,457)  (212,238

  Net cash used in investing activities (546,049) (88,197

Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Contributions restricted for permanent investment:

  Endowment 116,271  69,468

  Plant 78,885  40,743

  Trusts and other 498 3,980

Repayment of long-term debt (4,140)  (3,885

Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt 294,228  53,471

Decrease in federal student loan funds (402)  (13

Investment gain (loss) on annuities payable 5,820  (1,856

Payments on annuities payable (13,108) (13,358

Increase to annuities payable resulting from new gifts 6,864  4,786

  Net cash provided by financing activities 484,916 153,336

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 17,167 146,824

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 889,233 742,409

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $906,400 $889,233

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 1

Significant accounting policies followed by the University of  
Southern California are set forth below:

The University of Southern California is a not-for-profit, major 
private research university. The consolidated financial statements 
have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting, in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America and with the provisions of the American Institute of Certified 
Public Accountants’ Audit and Accounting Guide, “Not-for-Profit 
Entities,” which requires the university to classify its net assets into 
three categories according to donor-imposed restrictions or provisions 
of law: unrestricted, temporarily restricted, or permanently restricted. 
All material transactions between the university and its subsidiaries 
have been eliminated.

The university is generally exempt from federal income taxes under 
the provisions of Internal Revenue Code Section 501 (c) (3). The 
university is also generally exempt from payment of California state 
income, gift, estate and inheritance taxes.

Unrestricted net assets:

Education and general: Education and general include the revenues  
and expenses associated with the principal educational mission of the 
university. 

Health care services: Health care services are reflective of the revenues 
and expenses associated with Keck Hospital of USC, USC Norris 
Cancer Hospital, the Professional Services Agreement with Los  
Angeles County and USC Care Medical Group, Inc., a primary care 
and multi-specialty physician practice corporation. 

Sponsored research and departmental activities: Sponsored research  
agreements recognize revenue as it is earned through expenditure  
in accordance with the agreement. Any funding received in advance 
of expenditure is recorded as refundable advances. Departmental  
net assets include gifts to the university and its various schools and 
departments. The university has determined that any donor-imposed 
restrictions of gifts for current or developing programs and activities 
are generally met within the operating cycle of the university and, 
therefore, the university’s policy is to record these net assets as unre-
stricted. Internally designated net assets are those which have been 
appropriated by the Board of Trustees or designated by management. 

Unexpended plant and debt service funds: Unexpended plant and debt 
service net assets include gifts and income earned on unexpended bal-
ances for capital projects which are currently under construction and 
transfers from the operating budget to fund the debt service require-
ments for outstanding bonds, notes and mortgages payable. The uni-
versity follows the policy of lifting the restrictions on contributions 
of cash or other assets received for the acquisition of long-lived assets 
when the restrictions are fulfilled or the assets are placed in service.

Invested in plant: Invested in plant assets, including collections of works 
of art and historical treasures, are stated at cost or fair value at the 
date of gift, plus the estimated value of any associated legal retirement 
obligations, less accumulated depreciation, computed on a straight-line 
basis over the estimated useful or component lives of the assets (equip-
ment and library books useful lives ranging from 4 to 10 years and 
buildings component lives ranging from 5 to 50 years). Equipment is 
removed from the records at the time of disposal. The university fol-
lows the policy of recording contributions of long-lived assets directly 
in invested in plant assets when the purpose or time restriction is met 
instead of recognizing the gift over the useful life of the asset.

Long-term investment: Long-term investments include gifts and Board of 
Trustee designations to funds functioning as endowment, realized and 
unrealized gains and reinvested income (income earned in excess of 
the spending rule) on all endowment funds.

Student loan: Student loan net assets include lending activity to stu-
dents utilizing university resources designated for that purpose.

Temporarily restricted net assets:

Gifts for which donor imposed restrictions have not been met (pri-
marily future capital projects), charitable remainder unitrusts, pooled 
income funds, gift annuities, net appreciation on true endowment and 
pledges receivable for which the ultimate purpose of the proceeds is not 
permanently restricted are included in temporarily restricted net assets. 

Permanently restricted net assets:

Gifts, charitable remainder unitrusts, pooled income funds, gift 
annuities and pledges receivable which require by donor restriction 
the investment of the corpus in perpetuity, net appreciation on true 
endowment and only the income be made available for program  
operations in accordance with donor restrictions and gifts which  
have been donor stipulated to provide loans to students are included 
in permanently restricted net assets. 

Other accounting policies:

Cash equivalents consist of highly liquid investments with original 
maturities of three months or less.

Investments are stated at fair value. Net appreciation (depreciation) in 
the fair value of investments, which consists of the realized gains or 
losses and the unrealized appreciation (depreciation) on those invest-
ments, is shown in the Consolidated Statement of Activities. Realized 
gains and losses upon the sale of investments are calculated using the 
specific identification method and trade date. 

Alternative investment holdings and certain other limited partnership 
interests are invested in both publicly traded and privately owned 
securities. The fair values of private investments are based on estimates 
and assumptions of the general partners or partnership valuation com-
mittees in the absence of readily determinable market values. Such
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Note 1 (continued)

valuations generally reflect discounts for illiquidity and consider  
variables such as financial performance of investments, recent sales 
prices of investments and other pertinent information. 

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost (first in, first out) or market.

The university receives federal reimbursement for a portion of the 
costs of its facilities and equipment used in organized sponsored 
research. The Office of Management and Budget, Circular A-21, 
establishes principles for determining such reimbursable costs, requires 
conformity of the lives and methods used for federal cost reimburse-
ment accounting and financial reporting purposes. The university’s 
policies and procedures are in conformity with these principles.

Student tuition and fees are recorded as revenues during the year the 
related academic services are rendered. Student tuition and fees received 
in advance of services to be rendered are recorded as deferred revenue.

The university’s split interest agreements with donors consist  
primarily of gift annuities, unitrusts, pooled income funds and life 
estates. For irrevocable agreements, assets contributed are included in 
the university’s investments and stated at fair value. Contribution rev-
enue is recognized at the date each trust is established after recording 
liabilities for the actuarially-determined present value of the estimated 
future payments to be made to the beneficiaries. The actuarial liability 
is discounted at an appropriate risk-adjusted rate at the inception of 
each agreement and the applicable actuarial mortality tables. Discount 
rates on split-interest agreements range from 3.3% to 9.5%. The 
liabilities are adjusted during the terms of the trusts for changes in the 
fair value of the assets, accretion of discounts, and other changes in the 
estimates of future benefits. The Retired Pensioners 2000 Mortality 
Table with White Collar Adjustment for males and females projected 
using a Scale AA to the Annuity 2000 Mortality Table was used in 
the valuations. For split interest agreements related to the State of 
Washington, the university holds a Certificate of Exemption issued 
by the State of Washington’s Office of Insurance Commissioner to 
issue charitable gift annuities. The university has been in compliance 
with Revised Code of Washington 48.38.010(6) throughout the time 
period covered by the financial statements.

The university has recorded conditional asset retirement obligations 
associated with the legally required removal and disposal of certain 
hazardous materials, primarily asbestos, present in our facilities. When 
an asset retirement obligation is identified, the university records the 
fair value of the obligation as a liability. The fair value of the obliga-
tion is also capitalized as property, plant and equipment and then 
amortized over the estimated remaining useful life of the associated 
asset. The fair value of the conditional asset retirement obligations was 
estimated using a probability weighted, discounted cash flow model. 
The present value of future estimated cash flows was calculated using 
the credit adjusted, interest rate applicable to the university in order  
to determine the fair value of the conditional asset retirement  

obligations. For the year ended June 30, 2012, the university recog-
nized accretion expense related to the conditional asset retirement 
obligation of approximately $5,063,000. For the year ended June 30, 
2012, the university settled asset retirement obligations of approxi-
mately $1,317,000. As of June 30, 2012, included in the Consolidated  
Balance Sheet is an asset retirement obligation of $101,437,000.

Gifts from donors, including contributions receivable (unconditional 
promises to give), are recorded as revenues in the year received. Gifts 
are valued using quoted market prices, market prices for similar assets, 
independent appraisals, or by university management. Contributions 
receivable are reported at their discounted value using credit-adjusted 
borrowing rates and an allowance for amounts estimated to be uncol-
lectible is provided. Donor-restricted gifts, which are received and 
either spent, or deemed spent, within the same year, are reported as 
unrestricted revenue. Gifts of long-lived assets with no donor-imposed 
time restrictions are reported as unrestricted revenue in the year 
received. Gifts restricted to the acquisition or construction of long-
lived assets or subject to other time or purpose restrictions are reported 
as temporarily restricted revenue. The temporarily restricted net assets 
resulting from these gifts are released to unrestricted net assets when 
the donor-imposed restrictions are fulfilled or the assets are placed in 
service. Gifts received for endowment investment are held in perpetu-
ity and recorded as permanently restricted revenue.

Health care services revenues included the net patient service revenues 
associated with the Keck Hospital of USC, USC Norris Cancer Hos-
pital and USC Care Medical Group, Inc. Net patient service revenue 
is reported as estimated net realizable amounts from patients, third 
party payors, government programs and other in the period in which 
services are provided. The majority of the healthcare services are 
rendered to patients with commercial or managed care insurance, or 
under the federal Medicare and California State Medi-Cal programs. 
Reimbursement from these various payors is based on a combination 
of prospectively determined rates, discounts from charges and histori-
cal costs. Amounts received under the Medicare program are subject 
to retroactive settlements based on review and final determination 
by program intermediaries or their agents. Provisions for contractual 
adjustments and retroactive settlements related to those payors are 
accrued on an estimated basis in the period the related services are 
rendered and adjusted in future periods as additional information 
becomes known or as final settlements are determined. Health care 
services revenues also includes the revenues associated with the profes-
sional services agreement with the County of Los Angeles.

Allowances for doubtful accounts are based upon management’s assess-
ment of historical and expected net collections considering historical 
business and economic conditions. Periodically throughout the year 
management assesses the adequacy of the allowances for doubtful 
accounts based upon historical write-off experience. The results of this 
review are then used to make any modifications to the allowance for 
doubtful accounts.
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Note 1 (continued)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with account-
ing principles generally accepted in the United States of America 
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect 
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of con-
tingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and 
the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting 
period. Actual results could differ from these estimates.

The financial statements include certain prior-year summarized 
comparative information in total but not by net asset category. Such 
information does not include sufficient detail to constitute a presenta-
tion in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in 
the United States of America. Accordingly, such information should 
be read in conjunction with the university’s financial statements for 
the year ended June 30, 2011 from which the summarized financial 
information was derived. Certain reclassifications have been made to 
summarized financial information for comparative purposes.

The university applies the provision of Financial Accounting Standards 
Board (“FASB”) Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) 820, 
Fair Value Measurements, which defines fair value as the exchange 
price that would be received for an asset or paid to transfer a liability 
(an exit price) in the principal or most advantageous market for the 
asset or liability in an orderly transaction between market participants 
on the measurement date.

The following describes the hierarchy of inputs used to measure fair 
value and the primary valuation methodologies used by the university 
for financial instruments measured at fair value on a recurring basis. 
The three levels of inputs are as follows:

•   Level I - Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or 
liabilities.

•   Level II - Inputs other than Level I that are observable, either 
directly or indirectly, such as quoted prices for similar assets or lia-
bilities; quoted prices in markets that are not active; or other inputs 
that are observable or can be corroborated by observable market 
data for substantially the same term of the assets or liabilities.

•   Level III - Unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no 
market activity and that are significant to the fair value of the assets 
or liabilities.

A financial instrument’s categorization within the valuation hierarchy 
is based upon the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair 
value measurement. 

The university has adopted the authoritative guidance contained  
in FASB ASC 820-10, Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures, for 
estimating the fair value of investments in investment funds that have 
calculated Net Asset Value (“NAV”) per share in accordance with 
FASB ASC 946-10, Financial Services-Investment Companies (for-
merly the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants Audit 
and Accounting Guide, Investment Companies). According to this 
guidance, in circumstances in which NAV per share of an investment 
is not determinative of fair value, a reporting entity is permitted to 
estimate the fair value of an investment in an investment fund using 
the NAV per share of the investment (or its equivalent) without fur-
ther adjustment if the NAV per share of the investment is determined 
in accordance with FASB ASC 946-10 as of the reporting entity’s 
measurement date. Accordingly, the university uses the NAV as 
reported by the money managers as a practical expedient to determine 
the fair value of investments in investment funds which (a) do not 
have a readily determinable fair value and (b) either have the attributes 
of an investment fund or prepare their financial statements consistent 
with the measurement principles of an investment fund. At June 30, 
2012, the fair value of all such investments in investment funds has 
been determined by using NAV as a practical expedient. 

Additionally, in accordance with ASU 2009-12, the university consid-
ers several additional factors in appropriately classifying the investment 
funds in the fair value hierarchy. An investment is generally classified 
as Level II if the university has the ability to withdraw its invest-
ment with the investment fund at NAV at the measurement date. An 
investment is generally classified as Level III if the university does not 
have the ability to withdraw its investment with the investment fund 
at NAV, such as investments in closed-end funds, “side pockets,” or 
funds with suspended withdrawals imposed. If the university cannot 
withdraw its investment with the investment funds at NAV when 
such investment is subject to “lock-up” or gate, or its withdrawal 
period does not coincide with the university’s measurement date, 
the university considers the length of time until the investment will 
become redeemable in determining whether the fair value measure-
ment of the investment should be classified as a Level II or Level III 
fair value measurement.

Note 2

Accounts receivable (in thousands):

U.S. Government $23,198

Student and other, net of allowance for 
  doubtful accounts of $8,049 80,254

Patient care, net of allowance for 
  doubtful accounts of $23,827 195,307

 $298,759
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Note 3

Investments (in thousands):
Cost Fair Value

Equities $1,126,737 $1,171,408

Fixed income securities 697,803 697,468

Alternative investments: 

  Hedge funds 476,187 614,705

  Private capital 1,098,516 1,048,503

Real estate and other 268,368 202,008

Assets held by other trustees 121,731 131,035

Total  $3,789,342 $3,865,127

The following table summarizes the financial instruments carried at fair value as of June 30, 2012, by the ASC 820 valuation hierarchy  
defined above:

 Level I Level II Level III Total

Investments:  

  Equities $837,202 $280,921 $53,285 $1,171,408

  Fixed income securities  128,390 565,578 3,500 697,468

  Hedge funds    614,705 614,705

  Private capital    1,048,503 1,048,503

  Real estate and other    202,008 202,008

  Assets held by other trustees    131,035 131,035

Total investments  $965,592 $846,499 $2,053,036 $3,865,127

The university has classified all cash and cash equivalents as Level I financial instruments.

The following table summarizes the university’s Level III reconciliation of investments for the year ended June 30, 2012:

Balance at July 1, 2011 $2,036,135

  Net realized gains 112,206

  Net unrealized losses (49,712

  Transfers out* (141

  Purchases 231,431

  Sales and settlements (276,883

Balance at June 30, 2012 $2,053,036

*Transfers were due to an increase or decrease in price transparency or the availability of dealer quotations at the end of each month.

)

)

)
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Note 3 (continued)

The university uses the NAV to determine the fair value of all the underlying investments which (a) do not have a readily determinable fair 
value and (b) prepare their financial statements consistent with the measurement principles of an investment company or have the attributes of an 
investment company. The following table lists investments in other investment companies (in partnership format) by major category:

       Redemption 
  Fair Value    Redemption Restrictions and 
Category of  Determined Unfunded   Restrictions Terms in Place  
Investment Investment Strategy Using NAV Commitments Remaining Life Redemption Terms and Terms at Year End

Assets Held Miscellaneous $131,035,000 Not Applicable Not Applicable Redemptions Not Applicable Not Applicable 
by Other investments held    are not permitted 
Funds outside USC    during the life 
 where USC has    of the fund. 
 no authority 
 over the fund

Distressed US and Non-US $85,627,000 $14,670,000 Approximately Redemptions Not Applicable  Not Applicable 
Obligation  Distressed Debt     4 Years are not permitted 
Partnerships Securities    during the life 
     of the fund.

Equity Funds US and Non-US $280,804,000 Not Applicable Open Ended Minimum None None 
 Equity Securities     Monthly 

Fixed Income US and Non-US $2,646,000 Not Applicable Open Ended Minimum None None 
Funds Fixed Income    Monthly 
 Securities

Hedge Funds US and Non-US  $614,705,000 $13,500,000 96.6% of NAV Ranges between 19% of NAV None 
 Investments in    has an open ended  monthly redemption is locked up 
 Relative Value,    life and 0.4% of with 90 days notice,  for 3 months,  
 Event Driven,    NAV will be quarterly redemption 55% of NAV is 
 Long/Short,     liquidated on an with up to 90 days locked up for 
 and Directional    undetermined notice, semi-annual 1 year, and 26%  
 Strategies    basis. redemption with of NAV is locked 
     60 days notice, and up for more 
     annual redemption than 1 year. 
     with up to 180 days  
     notice. 

Natural  US and Non-US $336,519,000 $139,358,000 Approximately Redemptions Not Applicable Not Applicable 
Resources  Investments in   7 Years are not permitted 
Partnerships Upstream, Midstream,     during the life 
 and Downstream    of the fund. 
 Natural Resources 
 Investments

Other Funds US and Non-US  $1,261,000 Not Applicable Open Ended Monthly None None 
 Investments in  
 Securities Other  
 than Equity and  
 Fixed Income 

Private Capital US and Non-US $626,358,000 $214,310,000 Approximately Redemptions Not Applicable Not Applicable 
Partnerships Private Equity and   5 Years are not permitted 
 Venture Capital    during the life 
 Investments    of the fund.

Private  US and Non-US $171,702,000 $78,806,000 Approximately Redemptions Not Applicable Not Applicable 
Real Estate  Real Estate   5 Years are not permitted 
Partnerships     during the life 
     of the fund.

Total  $2,250,657,000 $460,644,000
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Note 4

Property, plant and equipment (in thousands):

Land and improvements $137,226

Buildings and improvements  2,646,049

Buildings under capital leases 60,696

Equipment 459,519

Library books and collections 256,603

Construction-in-progress 262,063

3,822,156

Less:  Accumulated depreciation 1,512,950

$2,309,206

Note 5

Bonds and note payable (in thousands): 
  Interest % Maturity 

California Educational Facilities Authority (CEFA) Revenue Bonds and Notes:
Series 2003A  4.75 2024 $50,000

  Premium     944

Series 2003B   5.00 2013-2016 4,670

  Premium     328

Series 2005   4.00-5.00 2013-2029 65,350

  Premium     2,155

Series 2007A   4.50-4.75 2013-2038 257,085

  Premium     2,202

Series 2009A   5.00-5.25 2039-2040 217,605

  Discount     (868

Series 2009B   5.00-5.25 2039-2040 197,900

  Premium     3,016

Series 2009C   5.25 2025 82,305

  Premium     7,322

University of Southern California Bonds:
Series 1998   5.87-6.26 2014-2019 8,585

  Discount     (19

Series 2011   5.25 2112 300,000

  Discount     (2,666

California Infrastructure Revenue Bonds USC (USC – Soto Street Health Sciences):   

Series 2010   3.00-5.00 2013-2032 35,835

  Premium     2,451

   

Notes Payable   5.00 2015 15,000

     1,249,200

Less current portion of long-term debt     5,495

  $1,243,705

Principal payment requirements relating to bonds and note pay-
able, after giving effect to refunding, for the next five fiscal years are 
approximately: 2013 $5,495,000; 2014 $9,730,000; 2015 $20,995,000; 
2016 $6,265,000; 2017 $1,340,000.

Interest payments for fiscal year 2012 were $55,209,000.

On April 6, 2009, a $100,000,000 revolving line of credit agreement 
was implemented with a bank. The credit agreement was amended on 

June 24, 2010 to increase the revolving line of credit to $200,000,000. 
On June 4, 2012, a second amendment was agreed to extend the 
maturity date to November 30, 2013. The line of credit accrues inter-
est based on LIBOR and contains a fee on the unused portion of the 
line of credit. During the years ended June 30, 2012, 2011 and 2010, 
the university did not draw down on the line of credit. The line of 
credit contains certain restrictive covenants required in the agreement.

)

)

)
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Note 6

Financial aid is awarded to students based on need and merit. Financial aid does not include payments made to students for services rendered to 
the university. Financial aid for the year ended June 30, 2012 consists of the following (in thousands):

 
   Undergraduate Graduate Total

Institutional scholarships  $225,270 $102,145 $327,415

Endowed scholarships   21,842 9,904 31,746

External financial aid   20,395 9,247 29,642

   $267,507 $121,296 $388,803

Note 7

Endowment net assets are subject to the restrictions of gift instruments requiring that the principal be invested in perpetuity and only the income 
and realized gains be utilized for current and future needs. Long-term investment net assets (funds functioning as endowment) have been estab-
lished from restricted gifts whose restrictions have been met and unrestricted gifts which have been designated by the Board of Trustees or man-
agement for the same purpose as endowment. The university also has a beneficial interest in the net income earned from assets which are held 
and managed by other trustees.

Endowment and long-term investment net assets functioning as endowment are summarized as follows (in thousands):

 
    Funds functioning  
   Endowment as endowment Total

Pooled  $2,381,913 $958,529 $3,340,442

Non-pooled   79,174 69,317 148,491

   $2,461,087 $1,027,846 $3,488,933

Pooled investments represent endowment and long-term investment net assets which have been commingled in a unitized pool (unit market 
value basis) for purposes of investment. The pool is comprised of cash and cash equivalents (6.26%), equities (37.60%), fixed income securities 
(6.28%), alternative investments (44.78%) and real estate and other investments (5.08%). Access to or liquidation from the pool is on the basis of 
the market value per unit on the preceding monthly valuation date. The unit market value at June 30, 2012 was $535.21.

The Board of Trustees has interpreted the “Uniform Prudent Management of Institutional Funds Act” (“UPMIFA”) as requiring the preservation 
of the original gift as of the gift date of the donor-restricted endowment funds absent explicit donor stipulations to the contrary. As a result of this 
interpretation, the university classifies as permanently restricted net assets, (a) the original value of gifts donated to the permanent endowment, 
(b) the original value of subsequent gifts to the permanent endowment, and (c) accumulations to the permanent endowment made in accor-
dance with the direction of the applicable donor gift instrument at the time the accumulation is added to the fund. The remaining portion of 
the donor-restricted endowment fund that is not classified in permanently restricted net assets is classified as temporarily restricted net assets until 
those amounts are appropriated for expenditure in a manner consistent with the standard of prudence prescribed by UPMIFA. In accordance 
with UPMIFA, the university considers various factors in making a determination to appropriate or accumulate endowment funds including: 
duration and preservation of the fund, economic conditions, effects of inflation or deflation, expected return on the funds and other economic 
resources of the university.

Endowment net asset composition by type of fund as of June 30, 2012 (in thousands):

 
   Temporarily Permanently  
  Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total

Donor-restricted endowment funds  $1,038,314 $1,422,773 $2,461,087

Board-designated endowment funds  $1,027,846   1,027,846

  $1,027,846  $1,038,314 $1,422,773 $3,488,933
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Note 7 (continued)

Changes in endowment net assets for the year ended June 30, 2012 (in thousands):

  Temporarily Permanently  
  Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total

Endowment net assets at July 1, 2011 $1,069,307 $1,140,467 $1,307,399 $3,517,173

Investment return:

  Investment income  56,141  441 56,582

  Net depreciation  (27,065) (31,128)  (58,193

Total investment return  29,076 (31,128)  441 (1,611

Gifts and transfers  16,846  114,933 131,779

Appropriation of endowment assets for expenditure  (87,383) (71,025)  (158,408

Endowment net assets at June 30, 2012  $1,027,846 $1,038,314 $1,422,773 $3,488,933

Endowments classified as permanently restricted net assets and tempo-
rarily restricted net assets are to be utilized for the following purposes:

Permanently restricted net assets (in thousands):

The portion of perpetual endowment funds that is required to be 
retained permanently either by explicit donor stipulation or by 
UPMIFA:

Restricted for scholarship support $352,540

Restricted for faculty support 354,581

Restricted for program support 715,652

Total endowment assets classified  
  as permanently restricted net assets $1,422,773

Temporarily restricted net assets (in thousands):

The portion of permanent endowment funds subject to a time  
restriction under UPMIFA:

Restricted for scholarship support $288,151

Restricted for faculty support 360,236

Restricted for program support 389,927

Total endowment assets classified  
  as temporarily restricted net assets $1,038,314

From time to time, the fair value of assets associated with individual 
donor-restricted endowment funds may fall below the value of the 
initial and subsequent donor gift amounts (deficit). When donor 
endowment deficits exist, they are classified as a reduction of unre-
stricted net assets. Deficits of this nature reported in unrestricted net 
assets were $22,799,000 as of June 30, 2012. These deficits resulted 
from unfavorable market fluctuations that occurred shortly after the 
investment of newly established endowments, and authorized appro-
priation that was deemed prudent.

The university has adopted endowment investment and spending 
policies that attempt to provide a predictable stream of funding to pro-
grams supported by its endowment while seeking to maintain the pur-
chasing power of endowment assets. Under these policies, the return 
objective for the endowment assets, measured over a full market cycle, 
shall be to maximize the return against a blended index, based on the 
endowment’s target allocation applied to the appropriate individual 
benchmarks. The university expects its endowment funds over time 
to provide an average rate of return of approximately 8.0% annually. 
Actual returns in any given year may vary from this amount.

To achieve its long-term rate of return objectives, the university  
relies on a total return strategy in which investment returns are 
achieved through both capital appreciation (realized and unrealized 
gains) and current yield (interest and dividends). The university targets 
a diversified asset allocation that places greater emphasis on equity-
based investments to achieve its long-term objectives within prudent 
risk constraints.

The university utilizes a spending rule for its pooled endowment.  
The spending rule determines the endowment income and realized 
gains to be distributed currently for spending with the provision that 
any amounts remaining after the distribution be transferred and rein-
vested in the endowment pool as funds functioning as endowment.

For the 2012 fiscal year, the Board of Trustees approved current dis-
tribution of 100% of the prior year’s payout, within a minimum of 
4% and a maximum of 6% of the average market value for the previ-
ous 12 calendar quarters. Under the provisions of the spending rule, 
$25.42 was distributed to each time-weighted unit for a total spending 
rule allocation of $157,947,000. Investment income amounting to 
$8.96 per time-weighted unit was earned, totaling $55,680,000, and 
$102,267,000 was appropriated for current operations from cumula-
tive gains of pooled investments. Endowment pool earnings allocated 
for spending in fiscal year 2012 represent 4.6% of the market value of 
the endowment pool at June 30, 2012.

)

)

)
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Note 8

At June 30, 2012, the university has adopted the required disclosures under ASU 2010-20, Disclosures about the Credit Quality of Financing 
Receivables and the Allowance for Credit Losses. According to this guidance, the university is required to disclose the nature of credit risk inher-
ent in the portfolio of financing receivables, its analysis and assessment in arriving at the allowance for credit losses (doubtful accounts), and the 
changes and reasons for those changes in the allowance for credit losses.

Long-term financing receivables as of June 30, 2012 consist of the following (in thousands):

June 30, 2012

   Financing  Allowance 
   Receivables,  for Doubtful 
   at Gross  Accounts Net

Perkins loans   $51,320  $51,320

University direct student loans   24,061 ($6,289) 17,772

Other student loans    15,030    15,030

  Total student loans    90,411 (6,289) 84,122

Faculty and other loans    32,216   32,216

Total   $122,627 ($6,289) $116,338

Management regularly assesses the adequacy of the allowance for credit losses by performing ongoing evaluations of the student loan portfolio, 
including such factors as the differing economic risks associated with each loan category, the financial condition of specific borrowers, the eco-
nomic environment in which the borrowers operate, the level of delinquent loans, the value of any collateral and, where applicable, the existence 
of any guarantees or indemnifications. The university’s Perkins receivable represents the amounts due from current and former students under 
the Federal Perkins Loan Program. Loans disbursed under the Federal Perkins Loan Program are able to be assigned to the Federal Government 
in certain non-repayment situations. In these situations the Federal portion of the loan balance is guaranteed. Included in other loans are loans 
related to the Federal Health Professional Student Loan Program (“HPSL”) and Loans for Disadvantaged Students (“LDS”).

Factors also considered by management when performing its assessment, in addition to general economic conditions and the other factors 
described above, included, but were not limited to, a detailed review of the aging of the student loan receivable detail and a review of the default 
rate by loan category in comparison to prior years. The level of the allowance is adjusted based on the results of management’s analysis. It is the 
university’s policy to write off a loan only when they are deemed to be uncollectible.

The following table illustrates the aging analysis of receivables as of June 30, 2012 (in thousands):

 
 1-60 Days 61-90 Days > 91 Days   Total Financing
 Past Due Past Due Past Due Current Receivables

Perkins loans $1,757 $400 $6,455 $42,708 $51,320

University direct student loans 601 235 10,086 13,139 24,061

Other student loans 652  573 13,805 15,030

  Total student loans 3,010 635 17,114 69,652 90,411

Faculty and other loans    32,216 32,216

Total $3,010 $635 $17,114 $101,868 $122,627

Considering the other factors already discussed herein, management considers the allowance for credit losses to be prudent and reasonable. Fur-
thermore, the university’s allowance is general in nature and is available to absorb losses from any loan category. Management believes that the 
allowance for credit losses at June 30, 2012 is adequate to absorb credit losses inherent in the portfolio as of that date.

As part of the program to attract and retain exemplary faculty and senior staff, the university provides home mortgage financing assistance. Notes 
receivable amounting to $32,216,000 were outstanding as of June 30, 2012 and are collateralized by deeds of trust. No allowance for doubt-
ful accounts has been recorded against these loans based on their collateralization and prior collection history. At June 30, 2012, there were no 
amounts past due under the faculty and staff loan program.
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Note 9

Unconditional promises are included in the consolidated financial 
statements as pledges receivable and revenue of the appropriate net 
asset category. Pledges are recorded after discounting using rates rang-
ing from 1% to 6% to the present value of the future cash flows. 

Unconditional promises are expected to be realized in the following 
periods (in thousands): 

In one year or less $148,219

Between one year and five years 246,036

More than five years 206,501

Less: discount of $114,252 and allowance of $12,453 (126,705

 $474,051

Pledges receivable at June 30, 2012 have the following restrictions  
(in thousands):

Endowment for departmental 
  programs and activities $236,636

Endowment for scholarship 7,068

Building construction 98,864

Departmental programs and activities 131,483

 $474,051

Note 10

Executed contracts, grants, subcontracts and cooperative agreements 
for future sponsored research activity which are not reflected in the 
consolidated financial statements at June 30, 2012 are summarized as 
follows (in thousands):

Current sponsored awards $499,425

Executed grants and contracts for future periods 581,037

$1,080,462

Note 11

At June 30, 2012, the university had remaining commitments of 
approximately $460,644,000 with alternative investment managers 
and/or limited partnerships.

Contractual commitments for educational plant amounted to approxi-
mately $58,324,000 at June 30, 2012. It is expected that the resources 
to satisfy these commitments will be provided from certain unexpended 
plant net assets, anticipated gifts and/or debt proceeds.

During the year ended June 30, 2007, the university entered into 
an agreement with the County of Los Angeles to provide profes-
sional services at LAC+USC Medical Center. Under the terms of 
the agreement the contract automatically renews on an annual basis 
unless either party gives four years’ notice of the termination. No such 
notice has been provided by either party.

Note 12

Retirement benefits for eligible employees are provided through the 
Teachers Insurance and Annuity Association and the College Retire-
ment Equities Fund, The Vanguard Group, AIG SunAmerica, Fidelity 
Investments and Prudential Financial. Under these defined contribu-
tion plans, the university and plan participants make contributions to 
purchase individual, fixed or variable annuities equivalent to retire-
ment benefits earned or to participate in a variety of mutual funds or 
commingled funds. The university makes a 5% non-elective contribu-
tion to all eligible employees and also matches dollar for dollar the first 
5% of the employees’ contributions. Newly hired employees on or 
after January 1, 2012, will have the university non-elective contribu-
tion subject to a four year vesting schedule. Benefits commence upon 
termination or retirement and pre-retirement survivor death benefits 
are also provided. Charges to education and general activities expenses 
for the university’s share of costs were approximately $113,513,000 
during the year ended June 30, 2012.

Retirement benefits for hospital employees covered under a collective 
bargaining agreement with the National Union of Healthcare Workers 
are provided by a defined contribution 401(k) plan through Fidelity  
Investments. Until August 2011, the hospital employees covered 
under a collective bargaining agreement with CNA were also covered 
under this 401(k) plan. Under the defined contribution plan, partici-
pants make contributions to purchase a variety of mutual funds. The 
university makes its contribution following the end of the calendar 
year and matches 100% of the participants’ contributions up to 3% of 
eligible earnings providing the participant was employed on the last 
day of the calendar year. Effective May 2012, the university match 
contribution was increased to 4%. In addition, the university makes a 
1% retiree medical benefit contribution to all participants who were 
both employed on the last day of the calendar year and worked 1,500 
hours in that calendar year. The university contribution is subject to 
a five year vesting schedule although previously credited years from 
before the acquisition have been carried over. Benefits commence at 
age 591/2, termination of employment, or retirement, and pre-retire-
ment survivor death benefits are also provided. Charges to education 
and general activities expenses for the university’s share of costs were 
approximately $1,989,000 during the year ended June 30, 2012.

Retirement benefits for non exempt employees are provided through 
a noncontributory defined benefit pension plan. The following table 
sets forth the plan’s funded status at June 30, 2012 (in thousands):

Obligations and Plan Assets

Change in Projected Benefit Obligation

Benefit obligation at end of prior year $182,325

Interest cost 10,026

Actuarial loss 37,943

Benefits paid (6,188

Benefit obligation at end of year $224,106

)

)
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Note 12 (continued)

Change in Plan Assets 

Fair value of plan assets at end of prior year $157,904

Actual return on plan assets (5,456

Benefits paid (6,188

Fair value of plan assets at end of year $146,260

Reconciliation of Funded Status

Accumulated benefit obligation at end of year $224,106

Projected benefit obligation at end of year ($224,106

Fair value of plan assets at end of year 146,260

Funded status ($77,846

Components of Net Periodic Benefit Cost

Interest cost $10,026

Expected return on plan assets (12,371

Amortization of net loss 3,496

Total benefit cost $1,151

Amounts recognized in the Statement of Financial Position

Noncurrent liabilities ($77,846

Amounts not yet recognized as components of Net Periodic Benefit Cost

Net loss $111,021

Changes in the net reduction to Unrestricted Net Assets 

Net gain $55,770

Amortization of net gain (3,496

Total $52,274

The estimated net loss/(gain) and prior service cost for the USC  
Support Staff Retirement Plan that will be recognized as components 
of net periodic benefit cost over the next fiscal year are $7,766,000 
and $0, respectively.

The plan was amended to freeze benefit accruals for all remaining 
active union participants effective December 23, 2009, and to provide 
full vesting for those participants. 

No special accounting for curtailments, settlements or termination 
benefits was required during the year ended June 30, 2012.

Assumptions

Weighted-average assumptions used to determine net periodic benefit 
cost for year ended June 30:

  Discount rate 5.60%

  Expected return on plan assets 8.00%

  Rate of compensation increase N/A

Weighted-average assumptions used to determine net year-end benefit 
obligations at June 30:

  Discount rate 4.40%

  Rate of compensation increase N/A

Plan Assets

In managing the plan assets, our objective is to be a responsible fidu-
ciary while minimizing financial risk. Plan assets include a diversified 
mix of fixed income securities and equity securities across a range of 
sectors and levels of capitalization to maximize the long-term return 
for a prudent level of risk. In addition to producing a reasonable 
return, the investment strategy seeks to minimize the volatility in our 
expense and cash flow. The target allocation for pension benefit plan 
assets is 65% equity securities and 35% fixed income securities.

As described in Note 1, the university uses a hierarchy to report 
invested assets, including the invested assets of the Plan. Following is 
a description of the valuation methodologies used for assets measured 
at fair value.

Fair Value

The Plan’s interest in collective trusts is valued based on the net asset 
value information reported by the investment advisor. The fund is val-
ued at the normal close of trading on the New York Stock Exchange 
every day the Exchange is open (a “Business Day”). Equity securities 
are valued at the official closing price of, or the last reported sales price 
on, the exchange or market on which such securities are traded, as of 
the close of business on the day the securities are being valued or at 
the last available bid price. In cases where equity securities are traded 
on more than one exchange, the securities are valued on the exchange 
or market determined to be the most representative market, which 
may be either a securities exchange or the over-the-counter market. 
Short term investments are carried at market value. 

The methods described above may produce a fair value calculation 
that may not be indicative of net realizable value or reflective of future 
fair values. Furthermore, while the Plan believes its valuation methods 
are appropriate and consistent with other market participants, the use 
of different methodologies or assumptions to determine the fair value 
of certain financial instruments could result in a different fair value 
measurement at the reporting date.

) 

)

)

)

)

)

)
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Note 12 (continued)

A summary of fair value measurements by level for investments measured at fair value on a recurring basis is as follows (in thousands):

 Level I Level II Level III Total

Collective Trust Funds:

  Short-term investment fund  $1,632  $1,632

  Equities securities  $93,968   93,968

  Fixed income securities  50,660   50,660

Total  $144,628 $1,632  $146,260

Allocation of Assets

The year-end asset allocation, which approximates the weighted- 
average allocation for the Plan assets as of June 30, 2012 and in  
comparison to target percentages for each asset category, is as follows: 

  
  Target at 
Asset Category June 30, 2012 June 30, 2012

Short-term investment fund 1.1% 1.0%

Equity securities 64.3% 65.0%

Debt securities 34.6% 34.0%

Total 100.0% 100.0%

The portfolio is evaluated annually, or when the actual allocation 
percentages are plus or minus 2% of the stated target allocation per-
centages. Changes in policy may be indicated as a result of changing 
market conditions or anticipated changes in the pension plan’s needs. 
Prohibited transactions include investment transactions prohibited by 
the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 and specula-
tive investments including commodities or unregistered stock without 
specific prior approval by the Investment Committee.

Contributions

No contribution to the pension plan was required during the  
year ended June 30, 2012. The university may make discretionary 
contributions to its pension plan during the next fiscal year. This will 
be reassessed during the year.

Estimated Future Benefit Payments

The following benefit payments, which reflect expected future  
service, as appropriate, are expected to be paid (in thousands):

Fiscal Year Ending June 30,

2013 $7,370

2014 $8,000

2015 $8,598

2016 $9,166

2017 $9,730

2018 – 2022 $55,350
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Note 13

The university is the lessee of various equipment and space under noncancelable operating and capital leases. Operating lease rental expense for 
the year ended June 30, 2012 was approximately $28,593,000. Space leases contained customary escalation clauses, which are included in annual 
aggregate minimum rentals.

Future aggregate minimum rental payments under operating and capital leases are as follows (in thousands):

Operating Capital

2013 $25,746 $3,713

2014 22,393 3,769

2015 21,408 3,826

2016 19,833 3,883

2017 19,241 3,941

Thereafter 166,177 85,849

   274,798 104,981

Less: Interest on capital leases (45,037

Total $274,798 $59,944

Note 14

Expenses are presented by functional classification in accordance with the overall service mission of the university. Each functional classifica-
tion displays all expenses related to the underlying operations by natural classification. Depreciation expense is allocated based on square footage 
occupancy. Interest expense on external debt is allocated to the functional categories which have benefited from the proceeds of the external 
debt. Plant operations and maintenance represents space related costs which are allocated to the functional categories directly and/or based on the 
square footage occupancy. 

Functional expense consists of the following (in thousands):

Academic,
Health Care and Support Fund Raising Year Ended 

Student Services Services Activities June 30, 2012

Compensation $1,216,773 $239,931 $22,799 $1,479,503

Fringe benefits 347,589 77,690 7,638 432,917

Operating expenses 632,796 245,937 12,867 891,600

Cost of goods sold 29,470 56,282 85,752

Travel 44,372 8,481 759 53,612

Allocations:

  Depreciation 119,797 39,251 190 159,238

  Interest 21,877 40,897 62,774

  Plant operations and maintenance 129,470 (129,724) 254

$2,542,144 $578,745 $44,507 $3,165,396

)
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Note 15

The university is contingently liable as guarantor on certain obliga-
tions relating to equipment loans, student and parent loans, and 
various campus organizations. The university receives funding or 
reimbursement from governmental agencies for various activities, 
which are subject to audit. In addition, certain litigation has been filed 
against the university and in the opinion of university management, 
after consultation with legal counsel, the liability, if any, for the afore-
mentioned matters will not have a material effect on the university’s 
financial position.

Note 16

The estimated fair value of the university’s bonds, notes and mortgages 
payable was $1,428,200,000 at June 30, 2012. This fair value was 
estimated based upon the discounted amount of future cash outflows 
using the rates offered to the university for debt of the same remaining 
maturities.

Determination of the fair value of notes receivable, which are primar-
ily federally sponsored student loans with U.S. Government mandated 
interest rates and repayment terms and subject to significant restric-
tions as to their transfer or disposition, could not be made without 
incurring excessive costs.

Note 17

Members of the Board of Trustees and senior management may, from 
time to time, be associated, either directly or indirectly, with compa-
nies doing business with the university. For senior management, the 
university requires annual disclosure of significant financial interest in 
entities doing business with the university. These annual disclosures 
cover both senior management and their immediate family members. 
When such relationships exist, measures are taken to appropriately 
manage the actual or perceived conflict in the best interests of the 
university. The university has a written conflict of interest policy that 
requires, among other things, that no member of the Board of Trust-
ees can participate in any decision in which he or she or an immedi-
ate family member has a material financial interest. Each trustee is 
required to certify compliance with the conflict of interest policy on 
an annual basis and indicate whether the university does business with 
an entity in which a trustee has a material financial interest. When 
such relationships exist, measures are taken to mitigate any actual or 
perceived conflict, including requiring the recusal of the conflicted 
trustee, and that such transactions be conducted at arm’s length, for 
good and sufficient consideration, based on terms that are fair and 
reasonable to and for the benefit of the university, and in accordance 
with applicable conflict of interest laws. As part of a competitive pro-
cess the university entered into a contract for the construction of a 
building with a company associated with a trustee. The value of the 
contract was approximately $36,000,000.

Note 18

The university has performed an evaluation of subsequent events 
through October 11, 2012, which is the date the financial statements 
were issued. On August 29, 2012, the university issued $41,595,000 
of CEFA Series 2012A bonds. The proceeds of this bond issue were 
deposited in a refunding escrow account to pay interest and principal 
for the CEFA Series 2003A outstanding bonds. The CEFA Series 
2003A bonds are scheduled to be redeemed, at par, on April 1, 2013.

Subsequent to the year ended June 30, 2012, the university signed 
a non-binding letter of intent to acquire the assets of Verdugo Hills 
Health Services (VHHS), a California non-profit corporation. The 
primary operation of VHHS is Verdugo Hills Hospital, a 158-bed 
acute care hospital located in Glendale, California. The acquisition of 
VHHS is not expected to have a material impact on the university’s 
results of operations.
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2012-13 Budget / in thousands

Undesignated Budget

Education and General Health Care Services

2011-12 2012-13 Percent 2011-12 2012-13 Percent
Budget Budget Change Budget Budget Change

Revenues

Tuition and fees $1,331,587 $1,434,174 7.7%    

  Less student aid (323,228) (346,517) 7.2%

Net tuition and fees 1,008,359 1,087,657 7.9%

Endowment income 62,640 64,332 2.7%    

Investment income 910 1,890 +100.0% $17 $17

Gifts 30,185 29,180 (3.3%)    

Contracts and grants – direct

Recovery of indirect costs:

  Contracts and grants 127,239 125,829 (1.1%)

  Endowments/Gifts 14,834 14,051 (5.3%)

Auxiliary enterprises 259,342 281,448 8.5%    

Sales and service and other sources 117,069 125,078 6.8% 915,405 1,013,953 10.8%

Total Revenues $1,620,578 $1,729,465 6.7% $915,422 $1,013,970 10.8%

Expenses

Compensation:

  Faculty salaries $316,990 $341,885 7.9% $151,720 $165,237 8.9%

  Other salaries and wages 471,555 511,033 8.4% 272,135 301,776 10.9%

  Employee benefits 238,144 242,762 1.9% 117,784 126,780 7.6%

Total Compensation 1,026,689 1,095,680 6.7% 541,639 593,793 9.6%

Current expense 359,376 358,935 (0.1%) 293,457 327,949 11.8%

Capital financing 67,556 85,038 25.9% 21,105 20,857 (1.2%

Professional services 38,065 47,812 25.6% 30,456 34,656 13.8%

Equipment/Library 22,617 30,443 34.6% 2,916 3,543 21.5%

Utilities/Telephone 45,046 45,573 1.2% 6,097 6,465 6.0%

Off-campus facilities 22,798 22,091 (3.1%) 2,960 4,440 50.0%

Travel 22,905 26,718 16.6% 1,599 2,292 43.3%

Rentals and leases 15,526 17,175 10.6% 15,193 19,975 31.5%

Total Expenses $1,620,578 $1,729,465 6.7% $915,422 $1,013,970 10.8%

)
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Designated Budget Total Budget

2011-12 2012-13 Percent 2011-12 2012-13 Percent
Budget Budget Change Budget Budget Change

$1,331,587 $1,434,174 7.7%

($66,053) ($75,139) 13.8% (389,281) (421,656) 8.3%

(66,053) (75,139) 13.8% 942,306 1,012,518 7.5%

55,258 60,008 8.6% 117,898 124,340 5.5%

927 1,907 +100.0%

206,756 227,554 10.1% 236,941 256,734 8.4%

426,887 452,063 5.9% 426,887 452,063 5.9%

127,239 125,829 (1.1%

14,834 14,051 (5.3%

259,342 281,448 8.5%

1,032,474 1,139,031 10.3%

$622,848 $664,486 6.7% $3,158,848 $3,407,921 7.9%

$85,242 $90,572 6.3% $553,952 $597,694 7.9%

166,310 174,106 4.7% 910,000 986,915 8.5%

69,466 72,811 4.8% 425,394 442,353 4.0%

321,018 337,489 5.1% 1,889,346 2,026,962 7.3%

211,928 233,313 10.1% 864,761 920,197 6.4%

716 172 (76.0%) 89,377 106,067 18.7%

24,026 26,350 9.7% 92,547 108,818 17.6%

22,589 19,426 (14.0%) 48,122 53,412 11.0%

51,143 52,038 1.7%

19,329 21,152 9.4% 45,087 47,683 5.8%

22,737 26,124 14.9% 47,241 55,134 16.7%

505 460 (8.9%) 31,224 37,610 20.5%

$622,848 $664,486 6.7% $3,158,848 $3,407,921 7.9%

)
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2013 Colleges, Schools, Centers & Institutes
Individual Revenue Center Summary / 2012-13 Budget / in thousands

Annenberg School for School of Continuing Education 
Communication & Journalism  School of Architecture Cinematic Arts and Summer Programs

 Undesignated  Designated Undesignated  Designated Undesignated  Designated Undesignated  Designated 

Revenues 
Direct  $52,431 $14,391 $16,747 $3,190 $48,644 $9,711 $3,148

Center	 65,738	 14,391	 22,161	 3,190	 62,088	 9,711	 3,220

UG	Student	Aid	Fund	 (11,469)	 	 (4,586)	 	 (11,436)	 	 	

Facilities	Improvement	Fund	 (1,838)	 	 (828)	 	 (2,008)	 	 (72)

Indirect  (2,409)  (1,854)  (3,522)     
	Participation		 (4,522)	 	 (1,955)	 	 (4,891)

	Academic	Initiatives		 	 	 	 	 65

	Provost’s	Initiatives	 57	 	 24	 	 326

	Graduate	Programs	 2,056	 	 77	 	 978

Total Revenues  $50,022 $14,391 $14,893 $3,190 $45,122 $9,711 $3,148

Expenses 
Direct  $40,250 $14,391 $10,383 $3,190 $31,923 $9,711 $3,148

Indirect  9,772  4,510  13,199 
	Allocated	Central	Costs	 8,585	 	 3,828	 	 12,239

	Facilities	Based		 1,187	 	 682	 	 960	 	 	

Total Expenses  $50,022 $14,391 $14,893 $3,190 $45,122 $9,711 $3,148

Davis School Dornsife College of School of  
 of Gerontology Letters, Arts and Sciences Dramatic Arts Gould School of Law

Undesignated  Designated Undesignated  Designated Undesignated  Designated Undesignated  Designated 

Revenues 
Direct  $7,637 $5,856 $263,020 $93,928 $12,938 $1,059 $40,868 $4,201

	Center	 8,537	 5,856	 384,807	 93,928	 18,640	 1,059	 42,786	 4,201

	UG	Student	Aid	Fund	 (709)	 	 (109,847)	 	 (5,113)	 	 (403)

	Facilities	Improvement	Fund	 (191)	 	 (11,940)	 	 (589)	 	 (1,515)

Indirect  2,173  2,012  (1,154)  1,292  
	Participation		 (542)	 	 (31,710)	 	 (1,489)	 	 (3,311)

	Academic	Initiatives		 2,000	 	 22	 	 	 	 2,000

	Provost’s	Initiatives	 	 	 685	 	 110	 	 2,603

	Graduate	Programs	 715	 	 33,015	 	 225

Total Revenues  $9,810 $5,856 $265,032 $93,928 $11,784 $1,059 $42,160 $4,201

Expenses 
Direct  $5,919 $5,856 $169,064 $93,928 $8,310 $1,059 $31,293 $4,201

Indirect  3,891  95,968  3,474  10,867 
	Allocated	Central	Costs	 3,317	 	 82,557	 	 2,759	 	 9,428	

	Facilities	Based		 574	 	 13,411	 	 715	 	 1,439	

Total Expenses  $9,810 $5,856 $265,032 $93,928 $11,784 $1,059 $42,160 $4,201
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 Institute for Marshall School  Price School 
 Graduate Programs Creative Technologies of Business of Public Policy

 Undesignated  Designated Undesignated  Designated Undesignated  Designated Undesignated  Designated 

Revenues 
Direct  $45,702  $5,817 $33,078 $154,795 $23,986 $36,304 $12,619

Center	 45,702	 	 5,817	 33,078	 194,874	 23,986	 41,200	 12,619

UG	Student	Aid	Fund	 	 	 	 	 (33,655)	 	 (3,433)	

Facilities	Improvement	Fund	 	 	 	 	 (6,424)	 	 (1,463)	

Indirect  (49,761)  (454)  (13,316)  (1,980)
	Participation		 	 	 (454)	 	 (15,280)	 	 (3,378)

	Academic	Initiatives		 21,660	 	 	 	 20	 	 	

	Provost’s	Initiatives	 	 	 	 	 40	 	 150

	Graduate	Programs	 (71,421)	 	 	 	 1,904	 	 1,248

Total Revenues  ($4,059)  $5,363 $33,078 $141,479 $23,986 $34,324 $12,619

Expenses 
Direct  ($4,059)  $4,387 $33,078 $100,880 $23,986 $24,261 $12,619

Indirect    976  40,599  10,063 
	Allocated	Central	Costs	 	 	 976	 	 37,795	 	 9,242	

	Facilities	Based		 	 	 	 	 2,804	 	 821	

 Total Expenses  ($4,059)  $5,363 $33,078 $141,479 $23,986 $34,324 $12,619

Roski School Rossier School   
 of Fine Arts of Education School of Social Work Thornton School of Music

 Undesignated  Designated Undesignated  Designated Undesignated  Designated Undesignated  Designated 

Revenues 
Direct  $9,294 $296 $63,450 $13,888 $95,917 $13,789 $27,297 $1,834

	Center	 13,394	 296	 65,608	 13,888	 98,526	 13,789	 36,627	 1,834

	UG	Student	Aid	Fund	 (3,696)	 	 (664)	 	 (48)	 	 (8,168)	

	Facilities	Improvement	Fund	 (404)	 	 (1,494)	 	 (2,561)	 	 (1,162)	

Indirect  (493)  (1,998)  (4,462)  1,280 
	Participation		 (1,031)	 	 (3,593)	 	 (5,749)	 	 (2,922)

	Academic	Initiatives		 300	 	 200	 	 500	 	 3,900

	Provost’s	Initiatives	 13	 	 25	 	 327	 	 52

	Graduate	Programs	 225	 	 1,370	 	 460	 	 250

 Total Revenues  $8,801 $296 $61,452 $13,888 $91,455 $13,789 $28,577 $1,834

Expenses 
Direct  $6,461 $296 $53,366 $13,888 $85,107 $13,789 $20,025 $1,834

Indirect  2,340  8,086  6,348  8,552 
	Allocated	Central	Costs	 2,029	 	 7,319	 	 5,936	 	 7,464

	Facilities	Based		 311	 	 767	 	 412	 	 1,088

 Total Expenses  $8,801 $296 $61,452 $13,888 $91,455 $13,789 $28,577 $1,834
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2013 Colleges, Schools, Centers & Institutes
Individual Revenue Center Summary / 2012-13 Budget / in thousands

Definitions:

Direct Revenues and Direct Expenses in Revenue Centers include  
all categories displayed in the Summary of Budgeted Operating  
Revenues and Expenses.

Center Revenues are directly generated by the center less any financial 
aid paid from center funds.

The Undergraduate Student Aid is centrally administered and charged 
to academic centers on a pre-determined percent of undergraduate 
tuition. For fiscal year 2012-2013, the rate is 30.0%.

Indirect Revenues are the sum of Participation, Academic Initiatives, 
Provost’s Initiatives, and Graduate Programs.

Participation is a tax on gross tuition revenue, recovery of indirect 
costs, sales and service and other sources. For fiscal year 2012-2013, 
the rate is 7.8%.

Academic Initiatives funding is for specific activities for a limited  
time period.

Provost’s Initiatives funding is allocated from centrally controlled 
funds to support university priorities.

Graduate Programs funding is provided to schools in support of  
graduate education. All PhD tuition is centralized and allocated to 
various schools based on academic priorities.

Indirect Expenses are the sum of Allocated Central Costs and Facilities 
Based Indirects and equal the net budgets of administrative centers (see 
Individual Administrative Centers 2012-2013 Budget by Presidential 
and Senior Vice Presidential Responsibility Area).

Allocated Central Costs are central administrative costs that benefit  
the university as a whole and are allocated to revenue centers.

Facilities Based Indirects are space related costs that can be linked 
directly to a center’s occupancy.

 Viterbi School of Engineering  Total Colleges, Schools,
 Academic Programs Information Sciences Institute Centers and Institutes

  Undesignated  Designated Undesignated  Designated Undesignated  Designated  

Revenues 
Direct   $113,112 $65,489 $7,970 $80,692 $1,005,091 $378,007

 Center   133,793 65,489 7,970 80,692 1,251,488 378,007

 UG Student Aid Fund   (16,376)    (209,603) 

 Facilities Improvement Fund   (4,305)    (36,794) 

Indirect    16,431    (58,215) 
 Participation    (11,275)  (628)  (92,730)

 Academic Initiatives    8,500  628  39,795

 Provost’s Initiatives   6    4,418

 Graduate Programs   19,200    (9,698)

Total Revenues   $129,543 $65,489 $7,970 $80,692 $946,876 $378,007

Expenses 
Direct   $83,558 $65,489 $5,058 $80,692 $679,334 $378,007

Indirect    45,985  2,912  267,542 
 Allocated Central Costs   38,944  2,912  235,330

 Facilities Based    7,041    32,212

Total Expenses   $129,543 $65,489 $7,970 $80,692 $946,876 $378,007
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2013 Health Sciences Schools & Health Care Services
Individual Revenue Center Summary / 2012-13 Budget / in thousands

Keck School of Medicine Ostrow School of Dentistry School of Pharmacy Total Health Sciences Schools

 Undesignated  Designated Undesignated  Designated Undesignated  Designated Undesignated  Designated 

Revenues 
Direct  $161,214 $206,073 $97,726 $14,373 $44,855 $11,625 $303,795 $232,071

 Center 165,725 206,073 103,129 14,373 46,204 11,625 315,058	 232,071

 UG Student Aid Fund (2,276)  (2,347)    (4,623) 

 Facilities Improvement Fund (2,235)  (3,056)  (1,349)  (6,640) 

Indirect  18,247  (6,120)  (2,060)  10,067 
 Participation  (8,966)  (7,555)  (3,770)  (20,291)

 Academic Initiatives  20,600      20,600

 Provost’s Initiatives 60      60

 Graduate Programs 6,553  1,435  1,710  9,698

Total Revenues  $179,461 $206,073 $91,606 $14,373 $42,795 $11,625 $313,862 $232,071

Expenses 
Direct  $121,070 $206,073 $67,988 $14,373 $31,552 $11,625 $220,610 $232,071

Indirect  58,391  23,618  11,243  93,252 
 Allocated Central Costs 48,313  19,322  9,703  77,338

 Facilities Based  10,078  4,296  1,540  15,914

Total Expenses  $179,461 $206,073 $91,606 $14,373 $42,795 $11,625 $313,862 $232,071

 
Dentistry Health Care Keck Medical Center Total Health Care Services

 Undesignated  Designated Undesignated  Designated Undesignated  Designated 

Revenues 
Direct  $4,745  $1,009,225  $1,013,970 

Center 4,745  1,009,225  1,013,970 

UG Student Aid Fund      

Facilities Improvement Fund      

Indirect       
Participation       

Academic Initiatives       

Provost’s Initiatives      

Graduate Program     

Total Revenues  $4,745  $1,009,225  $1,013,970 

Expenses 
Direct  $4,745  $1,004,007  $1,008,752

Indirect   5,218  5,218
 Allocated Central Costs   3,622  3,622

 Facilities Based    1,596  1,596

Total Expenses  $4,745  $1,009,225  $1,013,970 
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2013 Auxiliaries & Athletics
Individual Revenue Center Summary / 2012-13 Budget / in thousands

   
Animal Resources Bookstores  Coliseum Hospitality

Undesignated  Designated Undesignated  Designated Undesignated  Designated Undesignated  Designated 

Revenues 
Direct  $294  $40,232  $3,790  $40,819 

Center	 294	 	 40,232	 	 3,790	 	 40,819	

UG	Student	Aid	Fund	 	 	 	 	 	

Facilities	Improvement	Fund	 	 	 	 	 	

Indirect       
Participation		 	 	 	 	 	

Academic	Initiatives		 	 	 	 	 	

Provost’s	Initiatives	 	 	 	 	 	

Graduate	Programs	 	 	 	 	 	

Total Revenues  $294  $40,232  $3,790  $40,819 

Expenses 
Direct  ($1,460)  $36,517  $3,790  $37,631 

Indirect  1,754  3,715    3,188  
Allocated	Central	Costs	 779	 	 2,957	 	 	 	 2,078	

Facilities	Based		 975	 	 758	 	 	 	 1,110	

Total Expenses  $294  $40,232  $3,790  $40,819 

   
Housing Intercollegiate Athletics Radisson Hotel Senior Care

 Undesignated  Designated Undesignated  Designated Undesignated  Designated Undesignated  Designated 

Revenues 
Direct $55,601  $73,308 $4,567 $9,458  $1,520 

Center	 55,601	 	 73,308	 4,567	 9,458	 	 1,520

UG	Student	Aid	Fund	 	 	 	

Facilities	Improvement	Fund	 	 	 	

Indirect     
Participation		 	 	 	

Academic	Initiatives		 	 	 	

Provost’s	Initiatives	 	 	 	

Graduate	Programs	 	 	 	

Total Revenues $55,601  $73,308 $4,567 $9,458  $1,520  

Expenses 
Direct  $42,236  $63,389 $4,567 $9,157  $1,520

Indirect  13,365  9,919  301  
Allocated	Central	Costs	 9,283	 	 7,371	 	 301

Facilities	Based		 4,082	 	 2,548	 	 	 	 	

Total Expenses $55,601  $73,308 $4,567 $9,458  $1,520
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Student Health and 
 Counseling Services Transportation University Club  University Village

 Undesignated  Designated Undesignated  Designated Undesignated  Designated Undesignated  Designated 

Revenues 
Direct  $49,035 ($265) $20,680  $1,057  $1,420

Center	 49,035	 (265)	 20,680	 	 1,057	 	 1,420

UG	Student	Aid	Fund	 	 	 	 	 	

Facilities	Improvement	Fund	 	 	 	 	 	

Indirect       
Participation		 	 	 	 	 	

Academic	Initiatives		 	 	 	 	 	

Provost’s	Initiatives	 	 	 	 	 	

Graduate	Programs	 	 	 	 	 	

Total Revenues  $49,035 ($265) $20,680 $1,057  $1,420

Expenses 
Direct  $46,422 ($265) $12,436  $766  $834

Indirect  2,613  8,244  291  586
Allocated	Central	Costs	 2,218	 	 6,589	 	 291	 	 586

Facilities	Based		 395	 	 1,655	 	 	 	 	

Total Expenses  $49,035 ($265) $20,680 $1,057  $1,420

 Total Auxiliaries 
 USC Radio and Athletics 

 Undesignated  Designated Undesignated  Designated Undesignated  Designated Undesignated  Designated 

Revenues 
Direct  $8,116 $765 $305,330 $5,067

Center	 8,116	 765	 305,330	 5,067

UG	Student	Aid	Fund	 	

Facilities	Improvement	Fund	 	

Indirect  
Participation		 	

Academic	Initiatives		 	

Provost’s	Initiatives	 	

Graduate	Programs	 	

Total Revenues  $8,116 $765 $305,330 $5,067

Expenses 
Direct  $7,357 $765 $260,595 $5,067 

Indirect  759  44,735  
Allocated	Central	Costs	 759	 	 33,212

Facilities	Based		 	 	 11,523

Total Expenses  $8,116 $765 $305,330 $5,067 
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2013 Classification by Center
2012-13 Budget / in thousands

 Colleges, Schools,
 Centers and Institutes Health Sciences Schools Health Care Services

  Undesignated  Designated Undesignated  Designated Undesignated  Designated 

Revenues 
Direct   $1,005,091 $378,007 $303,795 $232,071 $1,013,970 

Center	 	 	 1,251,488	 378,007	 315,058	 232,071	 1,013,970

UG	Student	Aid	Fund	 	 	 (209,603)	 	 (4,623)	

Facilities	Improvement	Fund	 	 	 (36,794)	 	 (6,640)	 	 	

Indirect    (58,215)  10,067  
Participation		 	 	 (92,730)	 	 (20,291)	

Academic	Initiatives		 	 	 39,795	 	 20,600	

Provost’s	Initiatives	 	 	 4,418	 	 60	

Graduate	Programs	 	 	 (9,698)	 	 9,698	

Total Revenues   $946,876 $378,007 $313,862 $232,071 $1,013,970 

Expenses 
Direct   $679,334 $378,007 $220,610 $232,071 $1,008,752 

Indirect    267,542  93,252  5,218 
Allocated	Central	Costs	 	 	 235,330	 	 77,338	 	 3,622

Facilities	Based		 	 	 32,212	 	 15,914	 	 1,596

Total Expenses   $946,876 $378,007 $313,862 $232,071 $1,013,970 

  
 Auxiliaries and Athletics Total Revenue Centers Administrative Centers

   Undesignated  Designated Undesignated  Designated Undesignated  Designated 

Revenues 
Direct   $305,330 $5,067 $2,628,186 $615,145 $101,427 $49,341

Center	 	 	 305,330	 5,067	 2,885,846	 615,145	 (156,233)	 49,341

UG	Student	Aid	Fund	 	 	 	 	 (214,226)	 	 214,226	

Facilities	Improvement	Fund	 	 	 	 	 (43,434)	 	 43,434	

Indirect      (48,148)  93 
Participation		 	 	 	 	 (113,021)	 	 	

Academic	Initiatives		 	 	 	 	 60,395	 	 	

Provost’s	Initiatives	 	 	 	 	 4,478	 	 93

Graduate	Programs	 	 	 	 	 	 	

Total Revenues   $305,330 $5,067 $2,580,038 $615,145 $101,520 $49,341

Expenses 
Direct   $260,595 $5,067 $2,169,291 $615,145 $512,267 $49,341

Indirect    44,735  410,747  (410,747) 
Allocated	Central	Costs	 	 	 33,212	 	 349,502	 	 (349,502)

Facilities	Based		 	 	 11,523	 	 61,245	 	 (61,245)

Total Expenses   $305,330 $5,067 $2,580,038 $615,145 $101,520 $49,341
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 Provost Funding Total University Grand Total

   Undesignated  Designated Undesignated  Designated  

Revenues 
Direct    $13,822  $2,743,435 $664,486  $3,407,921

Center	 	 	 13,822	 	 2,743,435	 664,486	 	 3,407,921

UG	Student	Aid	Fund	 	 	 	 	 	

Facilities	Improvement	Fund	 	 	 	 	 	

Indirect    48,055    
Participation		 	 	 113,021	 	 	 	

Academic	Initiatives		 	 	 (60,395)	 	 	 	

Provost’s	Initiatives	 	 	 (4,571)	 	 	 	

Graduate	Programs	 	 	 	 	 	

Total Revenues    $61,877  $2,743,435 $664,486  $3,407,921

Expenses 
Direct   $61,877  $2,743,435 $664,486  $3,407,921

Indirect 
Allocated	Central	Costs

Facilities	Based	

Total Expenses    $61,877  $2,743,435 $664,486  $3,407,921
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 Net Operating Employee 
 Budget  Benefits Budget

President
President’s Office $3,754  —

Provost and Senior Vice President for Academic Affairs
Academic Affairs $6,148 

Academic Senate 165 

Emeriti Center 571 

Enrollment Services 21,908 

Faculty Affairs 1,309 

Faculty Sabbaticals  $9,600

Global Initiatives 2,467 

Information Technology Services 48,741 

Office of Research 9,229 

Provost’s Office 6,563 

Student Affairs 10,898 399

University Art Galleries 613 

University Libraries 38,588 

USC Stevens Center for Innovation 4,351 

Total $151,551 $9,999

Senior Vice President, Administration
Administrative Operations $2,250 $4,981

Audit Services 1,723 

Career and Protective Services 36,321 15,486

Center for Work and Family Life  907

Compliance 4,704 

General Counsel 9,008 

Senior Vice President’s Office  2,779 

Tram, Campus Cruiser and Rideshare 4,814 1,421

University Real Estate 7,908 

Total $69,507 $22,795

 Net Operating Employee 
 Budget  Benefits Budget

Senior Vice President, Finance & CFO
Budget and Treasury $3,882 $1,350

Campus Development 2,013 

Comptroller 7,391 445,742

Corporate Expense 32,472 

Facilities Management Services 75,181 

Financial and Business Services 14,628 

Major Maintenance and Renovation 2,057 

Senior Vice President’s Office 2,692 

Total $140,316 $447,092

Senior Vice President, University Advancement
Senior Vice President’s Office $29,208 

USC Alumni Association 1,390 

Total $30,598 —

Senior Vice President, University Relations
University Relations $11,329 —

Senior Vice President, USC Health
USC Health $3,692 —

  

Employee Benefit Recoveries  ($479,886

Total Administrative Centers $410,747 —

  

Undergraduate Student Aid Fund $214,226 

Facilities Improvement Fund 43,434 

Grand Total $668,407 —

2013 Individual Administrative Centers by Presidential
& Senior Vice Presidential Responsibility Area
2012-13 Budget / in thousands

)
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The central mission of the University of Southern California is the development of human beings and 
society as a whole through the cultivation and enrichment of the human mind and spirit. The principal 
means by which our mission is accomplished are teaching, research, artistic creation, professional practice 
and selected forms of public service.

Our first priority as faculty and staff is the education of our students, from freshmen to postdoctorals, 
through a broad array of academic, professional, extracurricular and athletic programs of the first rank.  
The integration of liberal and professional learning is one of USC’s special strengths. We strive constantly 
for excellence in teaching knowledge and skills to our students, while at the same time helping them  
to acquire wisdom and insight, love of truth and beauty, moral discernment, understanding of self, and 
respect and appreciation for others.

Research of the highest quality by our faculty and students is fundamental to our mission. USC is one 
of a very small number of premier academic institutions in which research and teaching are inextricably 
intertwined, and on which the nation depends for a steady stream of new knowledge, art and technology.  
Our faculty are not simply teachers of the works of others, but active contributors to what is taught, 
thought and practiced throughout the world.

USC is pluralistic, welcoming outstanding men and women of every race, creed and background.  
We are a global institution in a global center, attracting more international students over the years than 
any other American university. And we are private, unfettered by political control, strongly committed  
to academic freedom, and proud of our entrepreneurial heritage.

An extraordinary closeness and willingness to help one another are evident among USC students, 
alumni, faculty, and staff; indeed, for those within its compass the Trojan Family is a genuinely supportive 
community. Alumni, trustees, volunteers and friends of USC are essential to this family tradition, providing 
generous financial support, participating in university governance, and assisting students at every turn.

In our surrounding neighborhoods and around the globe, USC provides public leadership and public 
service in such diverse fields as health care, economic development, social welfare, scientific research,  
public policy and the arts. We also serve the public interest by being the largest private employer in the 
city of Los Angeles, as well as the city’s largest export industry in the private sector.

USC has played a major role in the development of Southern California for more than a century,  
and plays an increasingly important role in the development of the nation and the world. We expect to 
continue to play these roles for many centuries to come. Thus our planning, commitments and fiscal  
policies are directed toward building quality and excellence in the long term.

Adopted by the USC Board of Trustees, February 3, 1993

Role and Mission of the University of Southern California
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